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SENT VIA EMAIL

Dear Interested Party:

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR THE PROVISION OF
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX SYSTEM
ADDENDUM ONE

This Addendum One (Addendum) to the Integrated Property Tax (eTAX) System
Request for Proposals (RFP) provides responses to questions relating to the RFP,
Sample Contract, Statement of Work (SOW), SOW Attachments and Exhibits, and
updated information related to the RFP. Please note the following:

1.

Questions and responses to questions received from Proposers by
November 16, 2023, are in Attachment |, Responses to Proposer’s Questions.

RFP, Paragraph 1, Solicitation Information and Minimum Requirements, is replaced
in its entirety with the revised Paragraph 1, Solicitation Information and Minimum
Requirements, as noted in Attachment II.

Appendix A, Sample Contract, Subparagraph 7.6.1, Background and Security
Investigations, is replaced in its entirety with the revised Subparagraph 7.6.1,
Background and Security Investigations, as noted in Attachment Il

RFP, Subparagraph 8.5.6, Proposer’s Business Solution (Section C), is replaced in
its entirety with the revised Subparagraph 8.5.6, Proposer’s Business Solution
(Section C), as noted in Attachment IV.

RFP, Subparagraph 8.5.10, Exceptions to Terms and Conditions of Sample Contract
and/or Requirements of Exhibit A, SOW, and Exhibit 1A, Attachments/Exhibits
(Section G), is replaced in its entirety with the revised Subparagraph 8.5.6,
Exceptions to Terms and Conditions of Sample Contract and/or Requirements of
Exhibit A, SOW, and Exhibit 1A, Attachments/Exhibits (Section G), as noted in
Attachment V.

RFP, Subparagraph 8.9.4, is replaced in its entirety with the revised
Subparagraph 8.9.4, as noted in Attachment VI.

Exhibit A1, SOW Attachment 3, Functional Requirements, is replaced in its entirety
with the revised SOW Attachment 3, Functional Requirements, as noted in
Attachment VII.

Exhibit A1, SOW Attachment 4, Non-Functional Requirements, is replaced in its
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

entirety with the revised SOW Attachment 4, Non-Functional Requirements, as
noted in Attachment VIII.

Exhibit A1, SOW Attachment 9, Reference Library, Exhibit 6, Tax Rate Calculation,
is replaced in its entirety with the revised SOW Attachment 9, Reference Library,
Exhibit 6, Tax Rate Calculation, as noted in Attachment VIIII.

Exhibit A1, SOW Attachment 9, Reference Library, Exhibit 43, A-C Standard
Reports, is replaced in its entirety with the revised SOW Attachment 9, Reference
Library, Exhibit 43, A-C Standard Reports, as noted in Attachment X.

Appendix B, Exhibit 11, Response Template 3 — Engagement Staffing, is replaced in
its entirety with the revised Exhibit 11, Response Template 3 — Engagement
Staffing, as noted in the Word file.

Appendix B, Exhibit 14, Response Template 6 — Non-Functional Narrative
Responses, is replaced in its entirety with the revised Exhibit 14, Response
Template 6 — Non-Functional Narrative Response, as noted in the Word file.

Appendix B, Exhibit 19, Response Template 10 — Pricing Schedule, is replaced in its
entirety with the revised Exhibit 19, Response Template 10 — Pricing Schedule, and
is included as a separate Excel file to this Addendum.

Appendix A — Sample Contract; Exhibit A — SOW; Exhibit A1 — Statement of Work
Attachment I, Implementation Plan; Exhibit A1 — Statement of Work Attachment |,
Maintenance and Operations; Appendix B — Response Templates 1-4; Appendix B —
Response Template 6; and Appendix B — Response Templates 8-9 in Word format,
respectively, are included as separate files to this Addendum.

Appendix B, Required Forms, Exhibits 1-8 and Exhibits19-20 that are provided in
fillable Portable Document Format, are included as separate files to this Addendum.

Please attach this Addendum to your RFP.

Should you have any questions, you may contact me at (213) 974-7360 or
contracts@ttc.lacounty.gov.

Very truly yours,

KEITH KNOX
Treasurer and Tax Collector

Clena Villaciée 7601ea

Elena Villacrés Torres
Administrative Services Manager Il

EVT:SA:lac

Attachments
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

and Minimum
Requirement

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
1. RFP Page 33 “Using Appendix B, Required Forms, Can the County please confirm that the bolded reference be Yes, this was a typo please see corrections as follows
Paragraph (Para.) 8.5.6 Exhibit 13 Response Template 4, eTAX Exhibit 12, Response Template 4? and will be replaced in Addendum One:
System Business/Functional Narrative Using Appendix B, Required Forms, Exhibit 12
Responses, and Appendix B, Required Response Template 4, eTAX System
Forms, Exhibit 13 Response Template 5, Business/Functional Narrative Responses, and
eTAX Functional Requirements Matrix.” Appendix B, Required Forms, Exhibit 13 Response
Template 5, eTAX Functional Requirements Matrix.
2. RFP - Exhibit Page 1236 “Original signature of individual Can the County please confirm the electronic signatures are Yes, pursuant to Appendix A, Sample Contract,
9 Response authorized to legally bind the Company acceptable? Subparagraph 8.18, Counterparts and Electronic
Template 1 that will be signing and bound by the Signatures and Representations, electronic signatures
contract.” are acceptable.
3. RFP - Page 7 N/A Can the County please provide the estimated contract start The estimated contract start date is based upon
Solicitation date? approval by our Board of Supervisors and will depend
Information upon the length of negotiations with the successful

proposer. The actual start date could vary, but the
County of Los Angeles’ (County) current estimate is
that the start date would be on or about Fall 2024.
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

Requirement

be expected to interface with a separate cashiering system for
OTC payments? If the eTax system will support cashiering
activities, please confirm this is only for property tax bills, not
other items. Please also share the number of cashiering
workstations and users.

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
4. RFP Page 9 All potential Proposers must be registered | The RFP (Section 6.3) mentions the WebVen system. We have a | Yes, to clarify, your firm has met this requirement
Para. 6.3 in the County’s WebVen by or before WebVen vendor number but were told by ISDVendorRelations since your firm has a WebVen Number which indicates

proposal submission. The County’s Support to use the Vendor Self Service (VSS) website. Please that you are registered with Los Angeles
WebVen contains the Vendor’s business clarify what is needed to satisfy Section 6.3. County. However, it is up to each firm to review its
profile and identifies the goods/services information to ensure all information is accurate and
the business provides. Registration can be up to date (e.g., contact name, contact phone
accomplished online via the Internet by number, etc.).
accessing the
County’s home page at:
http://camisvr.co.la.ca.us/webven/.
Proposer must provide proof of WebVen
registration in its proposal by listing its
County WebVen Number on Exhibit 1,
Proposer’s Organization.

5. N/A N/A N/A The RFP appears in seven separate instances on the County’s As discussed in the Mandatory Proposers’ Conference,
site (camisvr). The attachments seem to be the same for each attendees will receive any subsequent Addenda via an
version (labeled A-F). Where will updates or amendments be e-mail and posted on the TTC website.
posted?

Link:
https://camisvr.co.la.ca.us/LACoBids/BidLookUp/OpenBidList
6. Statement of | Page 547 N/A Please clarify the scope and timeline of the RPRS (Remittance RPRS is a fully implemented Remittance Processing
Work (SOW), Processing Replacement System) project. In particular, we System. For the purpose of eTAX, there will be an
Attachment 5 | Section 25 would like to know about how this project will impact interface for remittance and cashiering payment
eTAX cashiering of tax bills over-the-counter (OTC). Will the eTax information.
Interface system support cashiering activities for tax bills OTC, or will it
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ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
7. SOW, Page 282 N/A For integrated products we have that help deliver on the scope | All packaged software costs must be included in the
Attachment 3 | COL 3-1-23 requirements, specifically the tax defaulted sale and CORTAC "5. Packaged Software" tab of "eTAX_RFP-
Functional and processing, do we include the cost components of those Exh_18_Response_Templates_No 10.xlsx." If
Requirement | Page 310 products in the Cost Assumptions tab for clarity? The fee additional information is required to clarify the usage,
SDT 3-60-1 component with both products are not borne by the County, add a comment to the Assumptions tab.
but by third parties.
8. RFP Exhibits N/A N/A Would the County consider increasing or removing the page No, the County will not consider increasing the page
9-18, limits in the response templates? The limits as written will limit. See response to question 9.
Response severely limit our ability to provide a comprehensive response.
Templates
1-10
9. RFP Exhibits N/A N/A Do screenshots and explanatory diagrams count towards the Screenshots and explanatory diagrams do not count
9-18, page limit for each section? against the page limit but should be included
Response immediately after the narrative response.
Templates
1-10
10. RFP Page 26-27 N/A The Business Requirements section refers to four requirements | Proposers are required to submit the responses for
Section B.3, B.4 and B.5 not included in the APPENDIX B CONTRACT REQUIRED FORMS each of the four items you referenced. It is at the
response template. Should vendors include the following discretion of the Proposer to submit them with the
8.5 Business Proposal sections in the Required Forms section of the response? Required Forms or separately.
Requirements and e Proposer’s Financial Capability
Evaluation; 8.5.5 e Proposer’s Pending Litigation and Judgements
Proposer’s Qualifications; e Proof of Insurability
Page 21 e Applicable Licenses and /or Permits
11. RFP 8.5 Business Proposal The section titled “Information Security and Privacy Yes, Response Template 6 will be replaced in its
Requirements and Requirements” in Section 8.5.7 of the Technical Solution entirety in Addendum One to include Subparagraph
Evaluation; 8.5.7 description is not found within Response Template 6 — Non- 8.5.7, Section titled “Information Security and
Proposer’s Technical Functional Narrative Responses. Should vendors include a Privacy.”
Solution response for this section within Template 6?

Page 3 of 44




COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

12. Statement of | Section 15.3.2, N/A This section references, “... expectation is this role will be Yes, the Project Engagement Director is the same as

work Maintenance and performed by the same person as the Project Engagement the Contractor’s Project Director.
Operations (M&O) Key Director.” The Project Engagement Director role is not called
Personnel out in the RFP; is this synonymous with the Project Director?
(Table)

13. Statement of | TTCDATA-6 Business N/A (Table) Please clarify the purpose of the business license interface. Should the future eTAX System be enhanced to collect
Work, License Interface, What does the eTax system do with the imported information? | business license payments, there will be a need to
Attachment Page 601 interface with the Business License System for the
5, payment acceptance.

Tax Interface
Requirements

14. Statement of | Page 1119 20 - Tax Sale App: Manage auction Item 20 in this list “Tax Sale App.” is noted as managing All auctions will be held online. The in-person auction
Work, Section 3.1.1.1.1 activities during in person auctions. “auction activities during in person auctions”. However, the referenced under Tax Sale Application refers to
Attachment Auction parcel is coming from MF. Functional Requirements seem to indicate that all tax sale systems to be retired. Refer to Exhibit 42,

9, Reference auctions are held online. Please clarify what auction activities Subparagraph 3.1.1.1.
Library, for in-person auctions, if any, will need to be managed by the
Exhibit 42 eTax System.
15. RFP Page 43 N/A Where can Section G referenced in Section 8.5.10 be found? To clarify, Subparagraph 8.5.10 is section G of
Para. 8.5.10 “Exceptions to the Terms and Conditions of Sample Contract Subparagraph 8.5 Business Proposal Requirements
and/or Requirements of Exhibit A, SOW and Exhibit A1, and Evaluation.
Attachments/Exhibits (Section G).

16. Exhibit 11: Page 1243 Instructions: Refer to Exhibit A, SOW, In #3, “Proposer Key Personnel”, a sentence cuts off after Response Template 11 will be replaced in Addendum
Response Paragraph 15.0 Overview of Staffing, for “could lead to the disqualification of the...” Please provide the One in its entirety to include all of Question #3, as
Template the definition and expected experience/ remainder of that sentence/paragraph. follows:

qualifications of Key Personnel. Complete
the following table detailing the Key
Personnel identified for this Engagement
(Implementation Project and M&O
Services). Add rows as necessary. Do not

Refer to Exhibit A, SOW, Paragraph 15.0, Overview of
Staffing, for the definition and expected
experience/qualifications of Key Personnel. Complete
the following table detailing the Key Personnel
identified for this Engagement (Implementation
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
change any of the existing columns. Any Project and M&O Services). Add rows as necessary.
changes to the template could lead to the Do not change any of the existing columns. Any
disqualification of the changes to the template could lead to the
disqualification of the Proposal.
17. Proposers’ N/A N/A The instructions given in the pre-bid conference stated that the | No, Attachment 5, eTAX Interface Requirements, and
Conference sample contract, SOW, and SOW Exhibits and Attachments Attachment 8, eTAX TTC Bill Layouts, are provided as
should all be redlined. This includes most of the RFP as issued, references and need not be red-lined in the proposal.
for example, Attachment 5 Interface Requirements and
Attachment 8 Bill Layouts, which are topics we would typically
discuss in detail during the implementation. Can you confirm
whether or not you expect red-lined versions of all of these
documents?
18. Proposers’ N/A N/A The instructions given in the pre-bid conference stated that the | Pursuant to Subparagraph 8.9.4 of the RFP, the Cost
Conference Cost Proposal should be submitted as a PDF, while the RFP as Proposal must be submitted in excel format, not in
issued states that it should be submitted as an Excel PDF.
worksheet. Please confirm the desired submission format for
the cost proposal.
19. General General N/A Are there any standard PM tools that will be provided by the The County has Microsoft Project available to its team
County? for this project.
20. General General N/A Is there a specific preference around Governance structure for | The County will work with the vendor during contract
the program? negotiations to implement the appropriate
governance structure.
21. RFP Page 1 N/A The County is requiring an aggressive response time which See Addendum One, Attachment .

1-Solicitation Information
and Minimum
Requirements

occurs over the two major holidays in the US. Would the
County consider extending the response time one month to
allow for a measured response while also allowing Contractor
staff to spend time with their families over the holidays? Other
County technology procurements proposal response timelines
have not been as aggressive as the timeline in the eTAX RFP.
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

22. RFP Page 1 N/A Will the contract term of 5 years, plus County optional No, pursuant to Subparagraph 3.2.1 of the RFP, the
1-Solicitation Information extensions, include the implementation period? five-year base term starts after final acceptance.
and Minimum
Requirements

23. RFP Page 1 N/A Does the County have an estimate for the amount of time The County provided the requirements and expects
1-Solicitation Information required to configure / customize the selected application? the proposers to estimate time for configuration
and Minimum and/or customization, which is also dependent on the
Requirements proposer’s solution.

24, RFP Page 1 N/A Does the County consider implementing a solution for a A proposer or its subcontractor who has successfully
1-Solicitation Information California Assessor as meeting the criteria for the minimum implemented or maintained a portion of the property
and Minimum requirements? tax functions described in for the County of
Requirements Los Angeles Department of Auditor-Controller (A-C)

and/or Department of Treasurer and Tax Collector
(TTC) in Exhibit A, SOW, within the most recent ten
years for a County, with property tax parcel count over
100,000 in the United States meets the requirement.

25. RFP Page 1 N/A If the Proposer has successfully negotiated terms with LA Each service contract is distinct and therefore,
1-Solicitation Information County Counsel for other large technology projects, will County | pursuant to Subparagraph 8.5.10 of the RFP,
and Minimum Counsel honor those already negotiated terms? Exceptions to Terms and Conditions of the Sample
Requirements Contract, and/or Requirements of Exhibit A, SOW and

Exhibit A1, SOW Attachments and Exhibits, your firm
should provide their red-line and alternate language
for this RFP.

26. RFP Page 18 N/A If the Prime Proposer uses a subcontractor that is certified asa | While the County highly encourages the participation

7.3 Social Enterprise (SE)
Preference Program

SE and that has a significant portion of the assigned workload,
will this qualify the response to receive the preference?

of diverse, small, and local businesses in all its
solicitations, including this RFP, the proposing entity
itself must be certified as an eligible SE to receive the
preference.

Proposers that meet the preference program
requirements pursuant to Paragraph 7 of the RFP
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
(County’s Preference Programs) will be granted a 15%
preference. Additional preferences for subcontracting
will not be provided under this solicitation.
27. RFP Page 25 N/A Is it permissible to reference ongoing projects that have not Yes, ongoing projects are permissible.
8.5.5 Proposer’s been completed?
Quialifications (Section B)
28. RFP Page 25 N/A Is it permissible to reference ongoing projects where the Yes, ongoing projects are permissible.
8.5.5 Proposer’s application is on production and the project has moved to the
Quialifications (Section B) M&O phase of the contract?
29. RFP Page 25 N/A Will the County notify the Proposers when they are requesting | No, the County will only communicate directly with
8.5.5 Proposer’s references so the Proposer, in turn, can contact the references | the references.
Qualifications (Section B) to remind them to respond?
30. RFP Page 25 N/A As a Fortune 500 company, we have hundreds of Public Sector | Regarding section 8.5.5 and Exhibit 7B, for Proposer's
8.5.5 Proposer’s contracts worldwide. Does the County expect a complete list with more than six governmental contracts, the
Quialifications (Section B) of these contracts? Proposer may, at its election, limit its response to only
those six governmental contracts during the past ten
years most similar to the scope of services solicited
under this RFP. The Proposer may, however, choose
to include more. This in no way limits Proposer's
obligation to fully respond as to debarred contracts in
Exhibit 4. The Proposer should also ensure the
governmental contracts cited are sufficient to meet
the mandatory minimum requirements.
31. Appendix A - Page 8 N/A How will the County budget for the enhancements that are The Proposer is expected to calculate cost based on
Sample (Section 5.1) discussed in other parts of the RFP? 15,000 hours of enhancements and modifications
Contract services as part of M&O. The estimated amount will

be included in the base contract amount each year.
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

32. Appendix A - Page 9 N/A This clause is, generally, applicable to Time and Materials No, per the Sample Contract at paragraph 5.1.1, the
Sample Para. 5.3 (T&M) contracts not to Fixed Price contracts. Does the County | “Contract rates specified in Exhibit B, Pricing Schedule,
Contract envision this will be delivered as a T&M contract ? must remain firm and fixed for the Contract Term

including all optional extensions.”

33. Appendix A - Page 11 N/A Will the County release the 20% hold back upon production go | As stated in the Sample Contract, Subparagraph 5.5.9,
Sample Para. 5.5.9 live? Will there be a hold back for the M&O period? the County will release the 20% hold back with
Contract respect to (i) the work completed and delivered by the

Contractor prior to Final Acceptance in accordance
with the project plan, the cumulative amount of such
holdbacks will be due and payable to the Contractor
up to Final Acceptance, and (ii) the work completed
and delivered by the Contractor via Change Notices or
Amendment.

34. Appendix A- | Page 11 N/A A 20% hold back exceeds what is considered an industry The County sets holdbacks based on the perceived
Sample Para.5.5.9 standard. What was the basis for the County selecting this risks of a project and individual proposers, and not
Contract number? Is this the County policy? If so, can the policy please | based on a set policy. In addition, to being based on

be referenced? the perceived risk, these may be adjusted higher or
lower depending on what other remedies are in place
to ensure successful performance, including, but not
limited to, performance bonds and parent guarantees,
if warranted.

35. Appendix A- | General N/A What is the Limitation of Liability for this contract? The County has not proposed any limitation of liability
Sample for this RFP.

Contract

36. Appendix A - Page 16 N/A Given that this is a deliverables-based contract, where the Please refer to page 16 of the Sample Contract,
Sample Para. 7.3 County has agreed to the deliverables and related costs as part | Paragraph 7, Administration of Contract — Contractor,
Contract of the SOW, what is the County’s expectations of the demands | Subparagraph 7.3, Contractor’s Financial Manager, for

on the Financial Manager? This function is usually managed by
the Contractor’s PM.

the demands of the Financial Manager. Additionally,
the Project Manager may serve in a dual capacity of
Project Manager and Financial Manager.
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
37. Appendix A - Page 60 N/A The County is requiring this to be a cloud based solution. Refer to the Sample Contract subparagraph 9.2.2. The
Sample Para.9.2;9.2.1 Based upon the language in the contract, is the County County anticipates the IP would be provided, for
Contract requiring the Contractor provide its cloud solution IP to the example, for those portions’ custom developed for
County? and paid for by the County pursuant to the contract,
but not for the proposer’s pre-existing solution. The
County is open to further negotiating the ownership
of such items, should it receive an appropriate
discount off their development costs.
38. Statement of | General N/A Is the Proposer required to comply with all of the elements of Yes, the County desires the Proposer to provide all the
Work — the SOW or is the document provided as a sample? Many of services and meets all requirements included in the
Exhibit A the items in the SOW are based upon a waterfall, custom SOW. Pursuant to subparagraph 8.5.10, if the
development approach. Other options including the use of an Proposer takes exceptions to the requirements in the
Agile methodology for configuration and development of SOW, Exhibit A, Exhibit A1 and Attachments, the
required customizations would be more appropriate for the Proposer should include their exceptions as a
intent of this RFP. red-lined version.
39. Statement of |Various Sections related to N/A Does the County expect the Proposer to provide the Quality The County expects the Proposer to provide an
Work — Project Documentation Control Plan, Business Continuity Plan and Quality Assurance overview of their approach on delivering each
Exhibit A Plan as part of the proposal response? These are, typically, activity/topic, an overview on how the deliverable will
billable deliverables. As noted, the Contractor will provide be created and an overview of the deliverable
DEDs for all of the deliverables. contents.
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No.

Origin of
Question

Page # and Paragraph

Language

Proposer’s Question

County’s Response

40.

Statement of
Work —
Exhibit A

General

N/A

The County proposes to use a cloud based Saa$S or COTS
solution but defines project tasks and steps are reflect
waterfall custom software development. Why has the County
taken this approach? Is the County open to using a modern
approach to customizations e.g., Agile?

Yes, the County is open to using a modern approach
to customization. As stated in Exhibit A, Statement of
Work, Subparagraph 5.2, the County wants to provide
the Contractor with the flexibility to execute the eTAX
Project as they feel it will be the most efficient and
effective. Pursuant to subparagraph 8.5.10, if the
Proposer takes exceptions to the requirements in the
SOW, Exhibit A, Exhibit A1 and Attachments, the
Proposer should include their exceptions as a
red-lined version.

41.

Statement of
Work —
Exhibit A

General

N/A

Does the County intend to accept the selected application
functionality out of the box with limited customization or does
the County intend to significantly customize the application?
Significant customization will increase both County costs and
project complexity.

Pursuant to Exhibit A, Statement of Work, Paragraph
1, due to the complexity and challenges in delivering a
California property tax system for a jurisdiction the
size of the County of Los Angeles, the County expects
the eTAX System to:

i.  Be built upon an existing Product which has
proven successful supporting a county(ies) in
the United States in their tax roll extension,
accounting, collection, apportionment,
management, and auditing of property taxes.

ii. Easily accommodate enhancements and
customizations and to address legal and
policy changes.

Additionally, as a guiding principle of the project, we
prioritize configuration over customization, as stated
in Exhibit A, Statement of Work, Subparagraph 3.3.7.

42.

Statement of
Work —
Exhibit A

General

N/A

Who will provide the services from the Assessor team to
support integration of the Assessor Data Base to eTAX?

The Assessor’s Information Technology (IT) team will
support integration of the Assessor Database. Please
refer to Exhibit A, Statement of Work eTAX Section 5.1
for Expected High-Level Implementation Roles.
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
43. Statement of | General N/A What is the current structure of PMO at the County? Should Appropriate governance will be formed during
Work — this structure be the standard for future? contract negotiations period.
Exhibit A
44, Statement of | General N/A What scheduling and other templates will be made available? The scheduling information will be provided to the
Work — vendor upon contract award.
Exhibit A
45. Statement of | General N/A The County’s SOW provides detail on the requirements that The Proposer must provide a detailed approach on how
Work — the County expects to Contractor to provide. This defines the they will execute the requirements in Appendix B,
Exhibit A WHAT the County wants. In what document will the Required Forms, Exhibits 9 - 18.
Contractor provide the HOW it will execute on the County’s
requirements? Will this be created as part of the contract
negotiations.
46. Statement of | Page 28 N/A How will the County measure 25% on site? Will the County The County will provide necessary accommodations
Work — provide adequate facilities for Contractor staff to include desks, | for the Contractor to work on-site, as necessary.
Exhibit A chairs, office supplies, internet access and conference rooms in | Additionally, the on-site time is determined by the
Section 14.1 order to support an efficient use of time? Contractor’s project plan.
47. Statement of | Page 28 N/A Once the project goes live and moves to O&M, does the No, this will be finalized during negotiations and
Work — Para. 14.1 County expect the staff to be onsite 25% of the time? planning.
Exhibit A
48. Statement of | Page 30 N/A The County is proposing that they be allowed “no less” than 10 | Reviewing complex deliverables may take longer than
Work — Para 14.2.2 working days to review deliverables. “No less” allows the ten days, and the expectation is that a review timeline
Exhibit A County to take an undefined amount of time to review a will be defined during planning.

deliverable. How does the County reconcile the ability to
delay deliverable acceptance for an undefined period of time
with the Contractor’s responsibility to deliver products and
enhancements on a set schedule violate SLAs?
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
49. Statement of | Page 39 N/A Does the County currently have the staff required to support The County is committed to providing the staff
Work — Para. 15.4 the eTAX project? How many of these staff members have needed to support the eTAX Project and has staff
Exhibit A worked on multi-year application customization and members who have worked on multi-year application
infrastructure management projects? customization and infrastructure management
projects.
50. Statement of | General N/A Does the County intend to heavily customize the Contractor’s Pursuant to Exhibit A, Statement of Work, Paragraph

Work —
Exhibit A
Attachment 1 -
Implementation
Plan

application or to accept the majority of the functionality “out
of the box”

1, due to the complexity and challenges in delivering a
California property tax system for a jurisdiction the
size of the County of Los Angeles, the County expects
the eTAX System to:

i.  Be built upon an existing Product which has
proven successful supporting a county(ies) in
the United States in their tax roll extension,
accounting, collection, apportionment,
management, and auditing of property taxes.

ii. Easily accommodate enhancements and
customizations and to address legal and
policy changes.

Additionally, as a guiding principle of the project, we
prioritize configuration over customization, as stated
in Exhibit A, Statement of Work, Subparagraph 3.3.7.
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
51. Statement of | General N/A The Implementation Plan requirements reflect a desire for Pursuant to Exhibit A, Statement of Work, Paragraph

Work - custom development and not configuration of an existing 1, due to the complexity and challenges in delivering a

Exhibit A application with limited customization. What is the County’s California property tax system for a jurisdiction the

Attachment 1 - desire in this regard? size of the County of Los Angeles, the County expects

Implementation the eTAX System to:

Plan i.  Be built upon an existing Product which has
proven successful supporting a county(ies) in
the United States in their tax roll extension,
accounting, collection, apportionment,
management, and auditing of property taxes.

ii. Easily accommodate enhancements and
customizations and to address legal and
policy changes.

Additionally, as a guiding principle of the project, we

prioritize configuration over customization, as stated

in Exhibit A, Statement of Work, Subparagraph 3.3.7.
52. Statement of | General N/A The Implementation Plan lists many documents that are No, the County does not expect the Proposer to

Work —
Exhibit A
Attachment 1 -
Implementation
Plan

required to manage an IT project. Is the County expecting any
of these documents / plans to be included as part of the
proposal response?

include all the documents mentioned in Attachment
1, Implementation Plan. Pursuant to subparagraph
8.5.10, if the Proposer takes exceptions to the
requirements in the SOW, Exhibit A, Exhibit A1 and
Attachments, the Proposer should include their
exceptions as a red-lined version.
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
53. Statement of | Page 15 N/A This task calls for the Contractor to “build” the eTAX system. Is | Pursuant to Introduction, Statement of Work: Due to

Work - the County expecting the Contractor to build a custom the complexity and challenges in delivering a

Exhibit A application or to configure its existing application and apply California property tax system for a jurisdiction the

Attachment 1 - limited customization to support unique County requirements? | size of the County of Los Angeles, the County expects

Implementation the eTAX System to:

Plan i.  Be built upon an existing Product which has
proven successful supporting a county(ies) in
the United States in their tax roll extension,
accounting, collection, apportionment,
management, and auditing of property taxes.

ii. Easily accommodate enhancements and
customizations and to address legal and
policy changes.

Additionally, as a guiding principle of the project, we

prioritize configuration over customization, as stated

in Exhibit A, Statement of Work, Subparagraph 3.3.7.
54, Statement of | Page 16 N/A What is the success criteria for go-live / acceptance based upon | The County expects the Contractor to execute

Work — the number and level of defects? deliverable 8.2 System Acceptance as defined in the

Exhibit A Deliverable Expectation Document. The County will

Attachment 1 - not go-live if a high severity level defect is identified.

Implementation Refer to Attachment 1, Subtask 5.5, Subtask 8.8.2, and

Plan Service Level Requirements.

55. Statement of | Page 18 N/A In this task, the County has stated it will develop its own test The timeline will be defined collaboratively during

Work —
Exhibit A
Attachment 1 -
Implementation
Plan

scripts for UAT. This is not considered a best practice since the
application will have been tested against a different criteria.
How does the County intend to define the duration of UAT?

planning. A proposer may red-line Statement of Work
— Exhibit A Attachment 1— Implementation Plan for
exceptions to capture its proposed best practice.
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
56. Statement of | Page 20 N/A What is the County’s current training system? Is the The County will not leverage its training platform to
Work — Contractor expected to use this training system? deliver the eTAX training content. Instead, the County
Exhibit A expects to utilize the Train-the-Trainer model. Refer
Attachment 1 - to Attachment 1, Task 6.
Implementation
Plan
57. Statement of | Page 20 N/A How will the County validate the readiness of the staff to use As stated in Attachment 1, Task 6, the Contractor will
Work — the eTAX application? Will the unions allow testing of develop a training and knowledge transfer plan,
Exhibit A employees? develop training material, and conduct training.
Attachment 1 - Additionally, the County expects to utilize the
Implementation Train-the-Trainer model.
Plan
The County will engage the union as necessary. Refer
to Attachment 1, Implementation Plan, Subtask 2.1.
58. Statement of | Page 12 N/A Does the County have a preferred Help Desk support tool? No, the County does not have a preferred Help Desk
Work — What tool will be used by the Level 1 Help Desk? Support tool.
Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations
59. Statement of | Page 13 N/A Given the open ended nature of the System Enhancements, is

Work —
Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations

the County amenable to establishing an annual budget for
T&M support for these activities?

The budget for enhancements will be finalized during
negotiations. The cost workbook proposes 15,000
hours a year, this is for evaluation purposes.
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ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

Statement of | Page 13 N/A For infrastructure support, what is the County’s desired release | The County would like the Proposer to provide a
Work — strategy e.g., 1 major release, 1 major release plus 1 minor release strategy that best aligns with the

Exhibit A requirements and Service Level Agreements (SLAs).
Attachment
2 —
Maintenance
and
Operations

Statement of | Page 19 (Table) N/A What is the current average response time for the on-premise Response times for on-site legacy systems are
Work — legacy system? unavailable.

Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations

Statement of | Page 19 (Table) N/A How will the County measure the transaction response time? The County will measure the response time using the
Work — “System Hosting and System Monitoring” tool. Refer
Exhibit A to Subtask 2.1 of the Maintenance and Operations.
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
63. Statement of | Page 19 (Table) N/A What is the dispute method given that there are dependencies | Dispute mechanisms are as provided for under the
Work — on factors outside the control of the Vendor? Sample Contract. See, for example, Sample Contract
Exhibit A paragraphs 5.5.51 (Disputed Fees) and 8.31 (Dispute
Attachment Resolution Procedure).
2 —
Maintenance
and
Operations
64. Statement of | Page 19 (Table) N/A What is considered a typical transaction ? As stated in the Statement of Work, Exhibit 1,
Work — Attachment 2, a typical transaction is a real-time
Exhibit A parcel-level inquiry. Examples include balance
Attachment inquiry, payment history, red flag indicators, etc.
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations
65. Statement of | Page 19 (Table) N/A Who establishes the monthly fee? The proposer provides the monthly fees through the
Work — Pricing Schedule template. Pursuant to the Pricing
Exhibit A Schedule, Tab 1. Introduction, the template provides a
Attachment structured approach for proposing the costs
2 — associated with delivering the eTAX solution
Maintenance requirements. Additionally, as stated in Tab 4. M&O,
and the M&O costs must include all tasks and deliverables
Operations required for ongoing M&O of the eTAX solution. The
monthly fee will be finalized during contract
negotiations period.
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ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

Statement of | Page 19 (Table) N/A Do other cloud based county applications meet this standard? The response time of each County cloud-based

Work — solution varies according to different business needs.
Exhibit A Refer to Exhibit 42, Figures 3: County Infrastructure
Attachment Conceptual Identity Access Management Architecture,
2 — and Figure 4: County Network Architecture.
Maintenance
and
Operations

Statement of | Page 19 (Table) N/A Can the County guarantee that the County network will System performance measurements will not include
Work — support this response time? County network, latency, or failure.

Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations

Statement of | Page 19 (Table) N/A What is the remedy if the County fails to provide a network System performance measurements will not include
Work — that is capable of supporting this SLA? County network, latency, or failure.

Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

69. Statement of | Page 19 (Table) N/A How will the County manage the capabilities of the devices The County will manage the capabilities of the
Work - that are being used to access the eTAX system to guarantee devices that are used to access the eTAX System.
Exhibit A that the device is capable of supporting the response time? System performance measurements will not include
Attachment devices used to access the eTAX System. However,
2 — the Proposer should include the minimum device
Maintenance requirements for its solution.
and
Operations

70. Statement of | Page 19 (Table) N/A Will the County consider beginning the service credits The expectation is system related SLAs are enforced
Work — collection for this SLA 1 year post go-live? An application can after the stabilization period.
Exhibit A be stress tested in the Test Environment, but it will not account
Attachment for variables in the Production environment that are beyond
2 — the control of the Contractor e.g., the County network. By
Maintenance collecting data without financial penalties, the application can
and be tuned to meet the performance standards in the Production
Operations environment.

71. Statement of | Page 20 (Table) N/A How does this SLA compare to the previous SLA? Average Response Time is the typical time for an

Work —
Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations

individual transaction, while Maximum Response Time
is the percentage of transactions above a threshold.
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ADDENDUM ONE

Attachment |
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response

Question
Statement of | Page 20 (Table) N/A Will the County combine the two SLAs? The County prefers to not combine the SLAs. If the
Work — Proposer takes exceptions to the requirements in the
Exhibit A Statement of Work — Exhibit A Attachment 2 —
Attachment Maintenance and Operations, the Proposer should
2 — include their exceptions as a red-lined version.
Maintenance
and
Operations
Statement of | Page 20 (Table) N/A If the County is combining the two SLAs, will the vendor be Yes. If the Proposer takes exceptions to the
Work - responsible for a 20% hold back for exceeding the average requirements in the Statement of Work — Exhibit A
Exhibit A response time by 1 second and an additional 10% hold back for | Attachment 2 —Maintenance and Operations, the
Attachment exceeding the target by completing the transaction in 3 Proposer should include their exceptions as a red-
2 — seconds? lined version.
Maintenance
and
Operations
Statement of | Page 20 (Table) N/A How will the County measure the transaction response time? The County will measure the response time using the
Work — “System Hosting and System Monitoring” tool. Please
Exhibit A refer to Subtask 2.1 of the Maintenance and
Attachment Operations.
2 —_
Maintenance
and
Operations
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ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

Statement of | Page 20 (Table) N/A What is the dispute method given that there are dependencies | Dispute mechanisms are as provided for under the
Work — on factors outside the control of the Vendor? Sample Contract. See, for example, Sample Contract
Exhibit A paragraphs 5.5.51 (Disputed Fees) and 8.31 (Dispute
Attachment Resolution Procedure).

2 —
Maintenance
and
Operations

Statement of | Page 20 (Table) N/A Can the County guarantee that the County network will System performance measurements will not include
Work — support this response time? County network, latency, or failure.

Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations

Statement of | Page 20 (Table) N/A What is the remedy if the County fails to provide a network System performance measurements will not include
Work — that is capable of supporting this SLA? County network, latency, or failure.

Exhibit A
Attachment
2 —
Maintenance
and
Operations

Page 21 of 44



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

78. Statement of | Page 20 (Table) N/A How will the County manage the capabilities of the devices System performance measurements will not include
Work - that are being used to access the eTAX system to guarantee devices used to access the eTAX System. However,
Exhibit A that the device is capable of supporting the response time? the Proposer should include the minimum device
Attachment requirements for its solution.
2 —
Maintenance
and
Operations

79. Statement of | Page 20 (Table) N/A Will the County consider beginning the service credits The expectation is system related SLAs are enforced
Work — collection for this SLA 1 year post go-live? An application can after the stabilization period.
Exhibit A be stress tested in the Test Environment, but it will not account
Attachment for variables in the Production environment that are beyond
2— the control of the Contractor e.g., the County network. By
Maintenance collecting data without financial penalties, the application can
and be tuned to meet the performance standards in the Production
Operations environment.

80. Statement of | General N/A The County is using an extensive list of SLAs in an attempt to The County will manage ongoing escalations

Work —
Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations

manage the performance and behavior of the Contractor.
What organization , with associated overhead, is the County
putting in place to manage the ongoing escalations that will
occur as a result of these SLAs?
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No.

Origin of
Question

Page # and Paragraph

Language Proposer’s Question

County’s Response

81.

Statement of
Work —
Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations

General

N/A Has the County implemented and managed similar SLAs for
other large technology initiatives? If so, how often did the
Contractor violate the SLAs? What was the escalation process
for resolving SLA violations that were caused by issues outside
of the Contractor’s control?

Yes, other County departments have implemented
and managed similar SLAs. However, no Saa$ solution
of similar size and scope to eTAX has been
implemented by the TTC and A-C. The escalation
procedure was governed by the dispute resolution
mechanism of the applicable contract.

82.

Statement of
Work —
Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations

Page 20 (Table)

N/A What was the County’s basis for determining the time for the
batch processing?

Batch processing times are dependent on business
requirements.

83.

Statement of
Work —
Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations

Page 20 (Table)

N/A What are the required times for the current processing times
for the on-premise legacy system?

Batch processing times are dependent on business
requirements.
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Attachment |
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

84. Statement of | Page 21/22 (Table) N/A How does this differ from the reporting requirements in Exhibit | The timelines and nature of the reporting
Work — I? requirements are different as noted in those two
Exhibit A references. For example, the initial report within one
Attachment hour may not yet include the full details required
2 — within 24 hours under Exhibit I. Both requirements
Maintenance apply and the successful contractor will be expected
and to report as much information as is available as soon
Operations as possible but no later than that required under

those requirements.

85. Statement of | Page 21/22 (Table) N/A What monthly fee does the County refer to for the SLA The proposer establishes the monthly fees through
Work — penalty? the Pricing Schedule template. Pursuant to the Pricing
Exhibit A Schedule, Tab 1. Introduction, the template provides a
Attachment structured approach for proposing the costs
2 — associated with delivering the eTAX solution
Maintenance requirements. Additionally, as stated in Tab 4. M&O,
and the M&O costs must include all tasks and deliverables
Operations required for ongoing M&O of the eTAX solution.

86. Statement of | Page 22 (Table) N/A What is the County’s current standard for RTO? Different applications have varying business
Work — requirements that determine the Recovery Time
Exhibit A Objective.
Attachment
2 —_
Maintenance
and
Operations
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

Statement of | Page 22 (Table) N/A Do other business critical applications in the County have a Different applications have varying business
Work — similar RTO? requirements that determine the Recovery Time
Exhibit A Objective.

Attachment
2 —
Maintenance
and
Operations

Statement of | Page 23 (Table) N/A What is the County’s current standard for RPO? Different applications have varying business
Work — requirements that determine the Recovery Point
Exhibit A Objective.

Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations

Statement of | Page 23 (Table) N/A Do other business critical applications in the County have a Different applications have varying business
Work — similar RPO? requirements that determine the Recovery Point
Exhibit A Objective.

Attachment
2 —
Maintenance
and
Operations

Page 25 of 44



ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

Statement of | Page 23/24 (Tables) N/A What support will the County provide to determine if the The County will determine if the outage is a global
Work — outage is an application or a network issue? network issue based on End Users’ ability to access
Exhibit A other external-facing sites.

Attachment
2 —
Maintenance
and
Operations

Statement of | Page 23/24 (Tables) N/A What is the County’s current agreement with ISD regarding The County’s Project Manager will coordinate with
Work — response times? This is important since the outage may not be | other departments as needed.

Exhibit A an application error.
Attachment
2 —
Maintenance
and
Operations

Statement of | Page 23/24 (Tables) N/A How will the County ensure that the Vendor will be given The County’s Project Manager will coordinate with
Work — access to the ISD staff in troubleshooting outages? other departments as needed.

Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations
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ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

93. Statement of | Page 26/27 (Table) N/A How will the County guarantee that their limited staff will be Please refer to the tasks on PDF page 148, section 5.1
Work - available to provide defined requirements, test requirements of the Statement of Work. The County expects the
Exhibit A and access to SMEs in order for the Contractor to be able to Proposer to provide anticipated County staff levels to
Attachment provide a response quote? complete the tasks.
2 —
Maintenance
and
Operations

94. Statement of | Page 26/27 (Table) N/A Why is the County requiring the Contractor to provide Please refer to subtask 4.1, Statement of Work —
Work — requirements since the enhancement is at the request of the Exhibit A, Attachment 2—Maintenance and
Exhibit A County? Operations, requirements will be developed
Attachment collaboratively and need to be included in the SOW to
2 — define the scope.
Maintenance
and
Operations

95. Statement of | Page 27 (Table) N/A How will the County guarantee that their limited staff will be The County is committed to providing the staff
Work - able to complete testing requirements for enhancements needed to support the eTAX Project. Pursuant to the
Exhibit A within the agreed upon time frame per the schedule of the General Requirements, Subparagraph 8.5.10, the
Attachment enhancement request? Proposer should take exceptions to the County's
2 — requirements in the SOW, Exhibit A, Exhibit A1, and
Maintenance Attachments to capture approach.
and
Operations
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INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE
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No.

Origin of
Question

Page # and Paragraph

Language Proposer’s Question

County’s Response

96.

Statement of
Work —
Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations

Page 27 (Table)

N/A What level of and quantity of defects are allowed for each
enhancement request? For example, 0 Sev 1, 0 Sev 2, 2 Sev 3
and 5 Sev 4.

The County will not pass UAT if a high severity defect
is detected.

97.

Statement of
Work —
Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations

Page 28 (Table)

N/A Who is responsible for creating the survey?

The Contractor will propose a survey for County’s
approval.

98.

Statement of
Work —
Exhibit A
Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations

Page 28 (Table)

N/A Who is responsible for delivering the survey?

The County will be responsible for delivering the
survey; however, pursuant to the RFP Subparagraph
8.5.10, the Proposer should take exceptions to the
County's requirements in the SOW, Exhibit A, Exhibit
Al, and Attachments to capture approach.
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ADDENDUM ONE
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No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

99. Statement of | Page 28 (Table) N/A Who is responsible for managing the survey? The County will be responsible for managing the
Work — survey; however, pursuant to the RFP Subparagraph
Exhibit A 8.5.10, the Proposer should take exceptions to the
Attachment County's requirements in the SOW, Exhibit A, Exhibit
2 — Al, and Attachments to capture approach.
Maintenance
and
Operations

100. | Statement of | Page 28 (Table) N/A Who is responsible for collecting the survey? The County will be responsible for collecting the
Work — survey; however, pursuant to the RFP Subparagraph
Exhibit A 8.5.10, the Proposer should take exceptions to the
Attachment County's requirements in the SOW, Exhibit A, Exhibit
2 — Al, and Attachments to capture approach.
Maintenance
and
Operations

101. | Statement of | Page 28 (Table) N/A Who is responsible for analyzing the survey? The County will be responsible for analyzing the
Work — survey; however, pursuant to the RFP Subparagraph
Exhibit A 8.5.10, the Proposer should take exceptions to the
Attachment County’s requirements in the SOW, Exhibit A, Exhibit
2 — Al, and Attachments to capture approach.
Maintenance
and
Operations
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ADDENDUM ONE
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No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

102. | Statement of | Page 28 (Table) N/A Who is responsible for identifying the survey participants? The County expects this to be collaborative effort;
Work — however, pursuant to the RFP Subparagraph 8.5.10,
Exhibit A the Proposer should take exceptions to the County's
Attachment requirements in the SOW, Exhibit A, Exhibit A1, and
2 — Attachments to capture approach.
Maintenance
and
Operations

103. | Statement of | Page 28 (Table) N/A What is the minimum percentage response for the survey to be | The County expects this to be collaborative effort;
Work — considered valid? however, pursuant to the RFP Subparagraph 8.5.10,
Exhibit A the Proposer should take exceptions to the County's
Attachment requirements in the SOW, Exhibit A, Exhibit A1, and
2 — Attachments to capture approach.
Maintenance
and
Operations

104. | Statement of | Page 28 (Table) N/A Will the County consider beginning this data collection 1 year The County desires the Proposer to provide all the
Work — post go-live? Change management experts indicate that services in the SOW. However, pursuant to the RFP
Exhibit A adoption and acceptance do not occur on production go-live. Subparagraph 8.5.10, the Proposer should take
Attachment The survey results will be skewed as users, both internal and exceptions to the County's requirements in the SOW,
2 — external, learn the new application which will differ Exhibit A, Exhibit A1, and Attachments to capture
Maintenance significantly from the legacy application approach.
and
Operations
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No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

105. | Statement of | General N/A The County is using an extensive list of SLAs in an attempt to The County will manage ongoing escalations
Work - manage the performance and behavior of the Contractor. internally.

Exhibit A What organization , with associated overhead, is the County
Attachment putting in place to manage the ongoing escalations that will
2 — occur as a result of these SLAs?
Maintenance
and
Operations

106. | Statement of | General N/A Has the County implemented and managed similar SLAs for Yes, other County departments have implemented
Work - other large technology initiatives? If so, how often did the and managed similar SLAs. However, no Saa$ solution
Exhibit A Contractor violate the SLAs? What was the escalation process of similar size and scope to eTAX has been
Attachment for resolving SLA violations that were caused by issues outside implemented by the TTC and A-C. The escalation
2 — of the Contractor’s control? procedure was governed by the dispute resolution
Maintenance mechanism of the applicable contract.
and
Operations

107. | General General N/A Will eTAX use the County Azure Active Directory to No, the County will use Microsoft Azure. Refer to
Question authenticate eTAX access for county employees? Exhibit 42, Figure 4.

108. | Attachment4 | Page 12 (USAB-02) N/A What is the expected scope for multi-language support Yes, County employees will use the tax system in
—eTAX Non- (Requirement USAB-02). Can we assume that county English. Other languages available in the public access
Functional employees will use eTAX in English while public access will portal are not required but rather a favorable
Requirements need to support a number of languages? What languages other | enhancement.

than English are required?

109. | Attachment 4 | Page 4 (Security: SEC-07, N/A Does eTAX intend to use the existing LA County infrastructure The County intends to use the public internet. Refer
— eTAX Non- SEC-08) for public access through the public internet or have separate to Exhibit 42, Figure 3.

Functional access? LA County Internal Services already provides public
Requirements internet access that includes all required firewalls.
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ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

110. | Appendix B— | General N/A Can you please provide the required forms in an editable Yes, we will provide Appendix B, Required Forms, in
Required document (i.e., Microsoft Word)? Currently there is no way to editable format in Addendum One.
Forms enter information into the PDF document.

111. | Appendix B— | General N/A Can the narrative responses be included as part of a standalone | Yes, the narrative box can be removed, but the
Required proposal or does the response have to be included in the Proposers have to clearly identify their responses
Forms narrative box in Appendix B? (i.e., Cover Letter, Executive corresponding to each question and should be in the

Summary, Functional, Non-Functional narratives, etc...) order noted in Appendix B.
112. | 2 — Page 4 N/A Please describe / elaborate for each legacy system, what data The County's IT support will work with the Internal

Introduction

extract capabilities it has / supports? Please describe for each
legacy system what database technology is currently used?
Can we use offshore?

How many legacy systems?

Services Department's (ISD) Main Frame Support
Team to provide data extract support.

Mainframe databases are IMS and DB2.

The majority of non-Mainframe Systems databases
are SQL servers.

As stated in the Sample Contract, Subparagraph 8.61,
vendors cannot provide offshore services.

Refer to Exhibit 42, Section 2.1, for a complete list of
legacy systems.
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Attachment |
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question

County’s Response
Question

113. | Statement of | Page 198 N/A Will the county supply the following for each Legacy System: The County will not provide functional

Work — Functional documentation describes the capabilities, A list of documentation, a list of interdependencies, or an
Exhibit A all interdependent systems (legacy or not), Your Plans that assessment of the impact of each legacy system.
Attachment 1 - describe in detail your assessment of the impact to the county Refer to Exhibits 1 through 38 for additional

Implementation information on our legacy systems.
Plan

Implementation
Plan - Sub task
8.5 Legacy
Systems
Inactivation /
Decommis-
sioning

114. | Statement of | Page 211 N/A How long does it take the County to run these jobs on the Business requirements dictate batch processing times.

Work — current application?
Exhibit A

Attachment
2 J—
Maintenance
and
Operations

Subtask 2.3
Interfaces
and Batch
Jobs
Management
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ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
115. | Statement of | Pages 355-767 N/A Please provide the following information for each Interface The County will provide information during the
Work - (current or future): Initiation Type (batch, transactional, on- Implementation phase.
Exhibit A demand); Frequency of batch execution (hourly, multiple per
Attachment 5 day, once daily, weekly, monthly, etc., on-demand); Peak
— eTAX Transaction Rates (per second, hour); Number of rows /
Interface records; Average Size (row/file/message), Any exception
Requirements handling processes.
116. | Required Excel Spreadsheet N/A Please elaborate: Will this need to apply to every single module | Yes, the audit trail applies to all business functions
Forms — / function? If not, then which business functions? Will this need | that allow users to edit. Audit trails must record all
Exhibit 15 DAT-15 to apply to every single user, or just to users with "privileged changes to the database, including by whom and
Response access"? when.
Template 7 —
eTAX System
Non-
Functional
Requirements
117. | Required Excel Spreadsheet N/A Please describe Your current MDM solution / service. The County currently uses Microsoft inTune for
Forms — MOB-02 Mobile Device Management. Refer to Exhibit 42
Exhibit 15 Subparagraph 3.1.1.
Response
Template 7 —
eTAX System
Non-
Functional

Requirements
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INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question

118. | Required Excel Spreadsheet MOB- N/A Please provide a list of these industry standard connectivity / Refer to the Sample Contract, Exhibit I, Information
Forms — 11 security policies. Security and Privacy Requirements Exhibits.

Exhibit 15
Response
Template 7 —
eTAX System
Non-
Functional
Requirements

119. | Required Excel Spreadsheet SEC-37 N/A Please describe Your current Two Factor Authentication The County will provide the Two-Factor

Forms — service? Authentication information upon contract award.
Exhibit 15
Response
Template 7 —
eTAX System
Non-
Functional
Requirements

120. | Required Excel Spreadsheet SEC-39 N/A Is this the on-premise version of Active Directory or the MS No, the County will use Microsoft Azure. Refer to
Forms— Azure version? Exhibit 42, Figure 4.

Exhibit 15
Response
Template 7—
eTAX System
Non-
Functional
Requirements
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COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
INTEGRATED PROPERTY TAX (eTAX) SYSTEM
COUNTY’S RESPONSE TO PROPOSERS’ QUESTIONS

ADDENDUM ONE

Attachment |

121.

Question
Statement of
Work —

Page 19

N/A

Proposer’s Question

County’s Response

122.

Exhibit A
Attachment 1 -

Plan
Subtask 5.4
—Conduct
Parallel
Testing

Statement of
Work —

Implementation

Page 16/17

N/A

Does the Contractor need to conduct Testing in Legacy system
also? Or just need to compare the Test results.

The Contractor will need to compare results.

Exhibit A
Attachment 1 -
Implementation
Plan

Subtask 5.1—
Develop Test
Plan

How many concurrent users/peak-users load do we need to
consider for performance Test execution?

Transactions for information.

Refer to Exhibit 42, Subparagraph 2.3.2, Peak
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ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
123. | RFP Page 41 N/A Will the County provide the Sample Contract in Word format? Yes, Appendix A, Sample Contract will be provided in
Para. 8.9.4 Word format.
124. | RFP Appendix B Exhibits 1-8 N/A Will the County provide the Contract Required Forms in an Yes, we will provide Appendix B, Required Forms,
editable format? Exhibits 1-8 in editable format in Addendum One.
125. | RFP Appendix B Exhibits 9-20 N/A Will the County provide the response templates in Word Yes, we will provide Appendix B, Required Forms,
format (with the exception of those already provided in Excel)? | Exhibits 9-20 in Word or Editable PDF format.
126. | RFP Page 18 N/A Can the County provide an estimated cost for the background The approximate cost starts at $50.00, however price
Para 7.6.1 checks performed by the California Department of Justice? may vary depending on where they live scan. In
California, fingerprinting must be performed by a
certified fingerprint roller or qualified law
enforcement personnel.
127. | RFP Page 40-41 N/A Given the number of files to be submitted, it is possible the Yes, identify each e-mail (i.e., 1 of 3,2 of 3, 3 of 3) on
Para. 7.6.1 sum size of all attachments may exceed 35MB. If so, can the the subject line next to the name of the solicitation.
proposer send multiple emails (i.e., 1 of 2, 2 of 2), so that all
files are delivered?
128. | Appendix B, Requirement 2 N/A Is this requirement asking us to list the inventory of accounts in | The County is asking for a solution that has the
Exhibit 20 the proposal response, or asking whether our solution does functionality to inventory and track accounts used.
inventory and tracks accounts used?
129. | Appendix B, Requirement 3 N/A These requirements refer to Microsoft Azure features. Are the | No, the County will use Microsoft Azure. Refer to
Exhibit 20 requirements asking us to use the County’s own infrastructure | Exhibit 42, Figure 4.
in Azure?
130. | RFP - Page 5-6 The Proposer’s eTAX System must be a The way section 4.1 below is written it sounds like the The eTAX System must include software
Minimum Section 4.1 cloud-based platform with data centers “Proposer”, most likely a consultancy or systems integrator, is implementation and cloud-based hosting located in

Requirements

situated within the United States, with the
Proposer responsible for the cloud
infrastructure. The Proposer must provide
a confirming statement demonstrating
that it meets this requirement.

responsible for the cloud infrastructure of a software vendor.
SI's implement software but do not have any control over the
data centers or cloud infrastructure of the software vendors.

Please clarify.

the United States and the Proposer must be the prime
contractor for the entirety of the eTAX Solution. For
example, the Proposer might meet this requirement
through self-hosting or a third-party service like
Amazon AWS, Microsoft Azure, etc. If the Proposer
takes exceptions to the requirements in the
Statement of Work - Exhibit A Attachment 2 -
Maintenance and Operations, the Proposer should
include their exceptions as a red-lined version.
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ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
131. | RFP - Page 5-6 The Proposer or its Subcontractor must Must the Proposer or its Subcontractor have successfully A proposer or its subcontractor who has successfully
Minimum Section 4.2 have successfully implemented and implemented and maintained all tax functions as described in implemented or maintained a portion of the property
Requirements maintained an eTAX System performing Exhibit A, SOW? What if a vendor has successfully provided a tax functions described in for the A-C and/or TTC in
property tax functions as described for the | nortion of those functions? Please Clarify Exhibit A, SOW, within the most recent ten years for a
A-C and/or TTC in Exhibit A, SOW, within County, with property tax parcel count over 100,000
the most recent ten years for a County, in the United States meets the requirement.
with property tax parcel count over
100,000 in the United States. The
Proposer must provide a confirming
statement demonstrating that it meets
this requirement.
132. | RFP Page 1 It would be in the County’s best interest to give all vendors a See Addendum One, Attachment II.
Section 1 reasonable amount of time to respond, thereby ensuring a

higher quality Proposal from all vendors. Given that, we
respectfully request a 60-day extension on the Proposal due
date and ask that you sincerely consider the following:

1. As admitted by the County during the mandatory
proposer’s conference on November 16th this is a
large and cumbersome 1200 plus page RFP that must
be read and understood by the Proposers in its
entirety.

2. Further, as stated during the proposer’s conference,
answers to questions will be provided “on or around”
December 7t giving proposers barely three practical
weeks to respond before the 1/11-2024 due date
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ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment |

No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
133. | Statement of | Page 19 The Contractor can leverage the software Given the following: The County has no preference and has written the RFP
Work Section 5.2.1 development e The volume of the RFP to allow vendors to propose what they believe is the
lifecycle they deem is the most efficient e The complexity of the solution best approach to deliver a product which meets the
and effective to e What is expected to be a significant number of Q&A to | requirements and business objectives. Pursuant to
produce the eTAX System (and deliverables digest and incorporate into our Response the RFP Subparagraph 8.5.10, the Proposer should
identified in Attachment 1, e Managing holiday schedules take exceptions to the County’s requirements in the
Implementation). However, the County e Gaining senior leadership approvals for an SOW, Exhibit A, Exhibit A1, and Attachments to
believes a hybrid approach (elements of engagement of this size capture their approach.
agile and elements of waterfall) e  Exceptions to the contract terms, SOW... given only
may best align with the County’s one opportunity to raise them
expectations. e  Working with partners and 3" party sw vendors on
the solution, contract flow down terms agreement...
Regarding section 5.2.1 on Page 19 below regarding the the
hybrid approach the County believes will best align with their
expectations... Can you please provide a list of which elements
of agile and which elements of waterfall you believe will best
align with the County's expectations for the software
development lifecycle and why?
134. | RFP Page 16 N/A Please advise if scoring points available for leveraging CBE No, scoring points will not be available for leveraging
Para. 6.20 participation beyond the stated “goal” for this project. Community Business Enterprise participation beyond
the stated goal for this project.

135. | Appendix B N/A There will be a 20% withhold on all Is the 20% required holdback negotiable? Pursuant to the RFP Subparagraph 8.5.10, Exception
Exhibit 18, invoices/payments, which the County shall as a redlines version to the Terms and Conditions of
Response pay to the contractor once the Project the Sample Contract and/or SOW, Exhibit A, and
Template Closes Out deliverable is approved. Exhibit A1, Attachments/Exhibit, Proposers are

provided the opportunity to take exception to the
County’s terms, conditions and requirements.
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No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
136. | Appendix B, Tab JC N/A What GIS system will be used? (please provide vendor and The County utilizes the Environmental Systems
Exhibit 13 software and hosting model) Research Institute, Inc.'s Aeronautical Reconnaissance
Coverage Geographic Information System suite of
products.
137. | Appendix B, Tab JC N/A How are jurisdictions being stored today? Currently, Jurisdictional Changes and calculations are
Exhibit 13 handled outside of the Mainframe database.
However, we are looking for an integrated solution as
specified in Appendix B, Exhibit 13, JC Tab, JC-7
requirement.
138. | Appendix B, RV-33 N/A What is your existing reporting system? (i.e., Power BI) Currently, the county utilizes PowerBI; WebFocus;
Exhibit 13 Legacy Mainframe Systems. However, we are looking
for an integrated solution as specified on the RFP page
37 (Requesting for Proposer to provide their approach
and technology for eTAX Reporting).
139. | Appendix B, Tab JC N/A Do you have a preferred existing document management The A-C currently do not use any scanning/OCR
Exhibit 13 system with scanning / OCR capabilities? capable tool as it relates to the context of this
question.
140. | Appendix B, RV-1 N/A Do you have a preferred integration or middleware platform No, the County does not have a preferred integration
Exhibit 13 that should be used? (if so, please provide the vendor, platform.
software and hosting model.)
141. | SOW, N/A N/A Is the resolution % negotiable for each category? "i.e., 95% of The County desires the Proposer provide all the
Attachment requests are responded to within four hours and resolved services and meets the requirements included in the

2:
Maintenance
and
Operations

within two days (two business/ working days)."

SOW. However, if the Proposer takes exceptions to
the requirements in the Statement of Work — Exhibit A
Attachment 2—Maintenance and Operations, the
Proposer should include their exceptions as a
red-lined version.
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No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
142. | SOW, N/A N/A Is there an existing SIEM to which the solution should integrate | The County does not have a Security Information and
Attachment for security monitoring and alerting? (please provide the Event Management solution (SIEM).
2, vendor, software and hosting model)
Maintenance
and
Operations
143. | SOW, N/A N/A Are the response times negotiable? Does the County have a The County desires the Proposer provide all the
Attachment mechanism for testing response times? services and meets all the requirements in the SOW,
2, including the testing service. However, pursuant to
Maintenance the RFP Subparagraph 8.5.10, the Proposer should
and take exceptions to the County’s requirements in the
Operations SOW, Exhibit A, Exhibit A1, and Attachments to
capture approach.
144. | Exhibit A, N/A N/A Can you please identify the technology data source for each Mainframe databases are IMS and DB2.
Statement of legacy data set?
Work Do all records or a subset of records need to be migrated? The majority of non-Mainframe Systems databases
are SQL servers.
Please refer to Exhibit 42, Section 2.1, for a complete
list of legacy systems and Section 3.1.1.1 Data to be
Converted on RFP page 1119.
The Contractor must migrate all records within the
data retention policy. Refer to the County's retention
and storage policies link:
https://file.lacounty.gov/SDSInter/bos/supdocs/01151
9 Retention.pdf.
145. | Exhibit A, N/A N/A How many tables and records per table need to be migrated The County will provide information during the

Statement of
Work

from each data source? How many are reference or lookup
tables vs tables that store unique record information (i.e., case
information)?

Conversion phase. Please refer to Exhibit 42, Section
3.1.1.1 Data to be Converted on RFP page 1119.
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No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
146. | Exhibit A, N/A N/A Will we have all the needed access to technical and business Yes, the County will provide technical and business
Statement of resources that understand the legacy data systems? Is there a resources that understand the legacy data systems.
Work documented data dictionary for those systems? The legacy data systems have a data dictionary, table
and field definitions, or interface specifications. Refer
to Attachment 5, eTAX Interface Requirements.
147. | Exhibit A, N/A N/A Can the existing integrations and files be re-used to support Yes. However, the vendor must analyze the data to
Statement of integration into this system? If so, approximately what % of determine the best use of the interfaces.
Work integrations exist and could be reused?
148. | SOW, N/A PERF-09 Ability to be available 24/7, Cloud Services Provider (CSP) uses commercially reasonable The County desires the Proposer provides all the
Attachment 365/366 days with minimum of 99.9% efforts to make its on-demand services available to its services and meet all requirements included in the
2, uptime except for agreed upon scheduled | customers 24/7, except for planned downtime, for which the SOW. However, if the Proposer takes exceptions to

Maintenance
and
Operations

maintenance and software
Revisions/Versions.

CSP gives customers prior notice, and force majeure events.
While availability SLAs can be negotiated in a contract, the
calculation is measured quarterly and not monthly.

Can the County please adjust this requirement and specify that
the SLA requirements can be negotiated based on the Service
provider chosen?

the requirements in the Statement of Work — Exhibit A
Attachment 2 — Maintenance and Operations, the
Proposer should include their exceptions as a
red-lined version.
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No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
149. | RFP Para. 5.5 Background and Security Investigations. We assume this only applies to contractor personnel that are No, pursuant to Subparagraph 5.5 of the RFP and
All Contractor personnel performing work | performing the solution implementation services and not the Subparagraph 7.6.1 of the Sample Contract,
under the Contract must be required to Cloud Service Provider (CSP) personnel that are hosting the Background and Security Investigations, each of the
undergo and pass, to the satisfaction of solution. Contractor’s staff performing work under this
the County, a background investigation as Contract, who is in a designated sensitive position, as
a condition of beginning and continuing to | For example, CSP engages the services of a background determined by County at the County’s sole
work under the Contract. Such screening vendor to conduct background checks on employees | discretion, must undergo and pass, to the satisfaction
background investigation must be at the time of hire. The CSP also performs background of the County, a background investigation as a
obtained through fingerprints submitted investigations in certain foreign countries. The scope of these condition of beginning and continuing to work under
to the California Department of Justice to | checks is subject to local laws in the jurisdictions in which the this Contract. Typically, the positions required to
include State, local, and Federal level employee is hired. Can the County please modify this undergo and pass a background investigation,
review, which may include, but will not be | requirement accordingly? Does the County agree with this include but are not limited to, Contractor’s Project
limited to, criminal conviction interpretation of this requirement? If the County mandates Director, Contractor’s Project Manager, Contractor’s
information. that CSP's also need to meet this requirement, will the County | Alternate Project Manager, and staff that have access
be willing to sponsor and pay for these background checks? to County assets, sensitive Information and/or
non-public information. The fees associated with
background investigation will be at the expense of the
Contractor regardless if the member of Contractor’s
staff passes or fails the background investigation.
150. | General N/A N/A While we understand the importance and urgency of this Refer to Addendum One, Attachment 1.
project, we kindly request an additional 30 day extension to
provide a more thorough response.
151. | RFP Para. 8.5.7 N/A How many users will consume reports, analytics, or dashboards | Refer to Exhibit 42, Subparagraph 2.4, for number of

(Viewers) from the proposed solution?

How many report developers or business unit analysts will
need to create standard or ad hoc reports (Developers)?

Will some reports, analytics, or dashboards be shared with the
public, external partners, or other government agencies
outside of TTC?

internal and external users consuming and/or
developing various reports and dashboards.

The County does not have the number of public users
consuming data. Use reasonable assumption.
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No. Origin of Page # and Paragraph Language Proposer’s Question County’s Response
Question
152. | RFP N/A N/A How are the Proposers’ qualifications evaluated? Pursuant to subparagraph 8.5.5, Proposer will be

How is negative information, if any, handled by the County?

evaluated on their experience and capacity as a
corporation or other entity to perform the required
services based on information provided under Section
B.

The County reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to
consider additional information, including references,
and to deduct points based on this additional
information.
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1 SOLICITATION INFORMATION AND MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS

Request for Proposals (RFP) 10/31/23
Release Date

Request for a Solicitation 11/13/23 by 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time (PT)
Requirements Review Due

Deadline to Register for Mandatory | 11/13/23 by 5:00 p.m. PT
Virtual Proposer’s Conference

Mandatory Virtual Proposer’s 11/15/23 at 10:00 a.m. PT
Conference
Written Questions Due 11/16/23 by 5:00 p.m. PT

Questions and Answers Released 12/15/23
via Addendum on or about

Proposals Due 01/31/24 by 5:00 p.m. PT

Anticipated Contract Term Base Term: Five years

Option periods: Two additional one-year
periods, and six month-to-month
extensions*

Maximum total Contract Term: Seven
years and six months

*Option periods are exercised at the sole
discretion of the County

Minimum Requirements e The Proposer’s Integrated Property
Tax (eTAX) System must be a
cloud-based platform with data
centers situated within the United
States, with the Proposer
responsible for the cloud
infrastructure. The Proposer must
provide a confirming statement
demonstrating that it meets this

requirement.

e The Proposer or its Subcontractor
must have successfully
implemented and maintained an
eTAX System
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performing property Tax functions as
described for the Auditor-Controller
and/or Treasurer and Tax Collector
in Exhibit A, Statement of Work,
within the most recent ten years for a
County, with property tax parcel
count over 100,000 in the United
States. The Proposer must provide
a confirming statement
demonstrating that it meets this

requirement.

The Proposer must identify a Project
Manager and Alternate Project
Manager with three years of
documented experience managing
projects of over $20M either with the
Proposer or with another firm prior to
employment with the Proposer. The
Proposer must provide supporting
documentation with the Proposal
Submission under Proposer’s
Background and Experience
(Section B.1).

The Proposer must attend the virtual
Mandatory Proposers’ Conference.

If the Proposer’s compliance with a
County Contract has been reviewed
by the County’s Department of
Auditor-Controller (A-C) within the
last ten years, the Proposer must not
have unresolved questioned costs
identified by the A-C, in an amount
over $100,000, that are confirmed to
be disallowed costs by the
contracting County department, and
remain unpaid for six months or more
from the date of disallowance, unless
such disallowed costs are the subject
of current good faith negotiations to
resolve the disallowed costs, in the
opinion of the County. The Proposer
acknowledges that the County will
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conduct a review of the compliance
results.

RFP Contact

Elena Villacrés Torres, Contract Manager
Email: contracts@ttc.lacounty.gov
Office: (213) 974-7360
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7.6 BACKGROUND AND SECURITY INVESTIGATIONS

7.6.1

Each of the Contractor’s staff performing work under this Contract, who
is in a designated sensitive position, as determined by the County at the
County’s sole discretion, must undergo and pass, to the satisfaction of
the County, a background investigation as a condition of beginning
and continuing to work under this Contract. Typically, the positions
required to undergo and pass a background investigation include but are
not limited to, Contractor’s Project Director, Contractor’s Project
Manager, Contractor’s Alternate Project Manager, and staff that have
access to County assets, sensitive Information and/or non-public
information.

Such background investigation must be obtained through fingerprints
submitted to the California Department of Justice (DOJ) to include
State, local, and federal level review, which include, but may not be
limited to, criminal conviction information. Examples of disqualifying
factors include, but are not limited to, bribery, robbery, theft, fraud,
embezzlement, forgery, extortion, perjury, convictions involving a
controlled substance, convictions involving stolen property, any felony
conviction, a misdemeanor conviction involving moral turpitude, or any
job-related misdemeanor conviction. The fees associated with
background investigation will be at the expense of the Contractor
regardless if the member of Contractor’s staff passes or fails the
background investigation.

The Contractor must provide to the County the legal name of each
person in a designated sensitive position and the dates on which said
persons submitted fingerprints to the California DOJ. The Contractor
must provide such information in writing within five calendar days of
the date on which the fingerprinting occurred.
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Proposer’s Business Solution (Section C) (30%)

Proposer will be evaluated on its description of the methodology
to be used to meet the County’s requirements based on
information provided in this section. Proposer must present a
detailed description of the methodology the Proposer will use to
meet Contract and SOW requirements. Describe in detail how
the services will be performed to meet the intent of the Exhibit
A, SOW.

Using Appendix B, Required Forms, Exhibit 12 Response
Template 4, eTAX System Business/Functional Narrative
Responses, and Appendix B, Required Forms, Exhibit 13
Response Template 5, eTAX Functional Requirements Matrix:

1. Provide an overview of the Proposed eTAX System and
how it will integrate all the in-scope business functions and
address the project objectives, aligned with the guiding
principles. Describe how your Proposed eTAX System will
meet the County’s Overall project objectives for the eTAX
Project. The Proposer’s response must focus on the
Proposed eTAX System rather than the implementation
approach. If applicable, provide examples in California
where your solution has been deployed.

2. Describe how the Proposed eTAX System will meet the
County’s business objectives, items that are unique to the
County and meet the key expectations. Include a
discussion of how users will engage with (input and
extract) all information easily and efficiently (with a focus
on usability). The Proposer’s response must focus on the
business outcomes and approach rather than the specific
functionality captured in Functional Requirements
Response Template:

Jurisdictional Change and Annexation
Roll Valuation

Tax Rate Calculation

Direct Assessment Management
Extend Tax Rolls

Community Redevelopment Agencies
Increment Financing Districts
Countywide Allocation Factors

Roll Maintenance

Refund Management

Tax Apportionment

Mandatory Reporting

Billing

Collections

S3TATTSQ@T0000D
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ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment IV

Manage Payment Plans
Unsecured Delinquencies
Secured Defaulted Tax Roll
Bankruptcy Management
Miscellaneous Services

Page 2 of 2
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ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment V

Exceptions to Terms and Conditions of Sample Contract
and/or Requirements of Exhibit A, SOW and Exhibit 1A,
Attachments/Exhibits (Section G)

It is the duty of every Proposer to thoroughly review the
Sample Contract and SOW to ensure compliance with all
terms, conditions, and requirements.

Proposer will be evaluated on their willingness to accept the
Terms and Conditions outlined in Appendix A (Sample
Contract) and the Requirements of the SOW outlined in
Exhibit A, SOW of Appendix A (Sample Contract).

It is the County’s expectation that in submitting a proposal the
Proposers will accept, as stated, the County’s terms and
conditions in the Sample Contract and the County’s
requirements in the SOW. However, Proposers are provided
the opportunity to take exceptions to the County’s terms,
conditions, and requirements in the Sample Contract, SOW,
SOW Attachment 1, Implementation, and SOW Attachment
2, Maintenance and Operations. SOW Attachments 3 through
9 are provided only as references/samples. The County in its
sole discretion may deduct rating points or disqualify the
proposal in its entirety if the exceptions are material enough
to deem the proposal non-responsive.

Proposers are further notified that the County may, in its sole
determination, disqualify any Proposer with whom the County
cannot satisfactorily negotiate a Contract.

The Proposer’s exceptions to Appendix A (Sample Contract),
and the Requirements of Exhibit A, SOW, will not be
considered after the proposal deadline.
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ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment VI

Proposals must be submitted as follows:

File names must consist of the acronym of the Proposer’s
company name and abbreviated title of the document.
Examples of file names are noted below with the example of
“‘Sample File Name” as the company name with acronym (SFN),
document number, and file name. File names must not exceed
a maximum of 25 characters to ensure the system accepts the
document(s):

o SFN 01 Bus Prop

SFN 02 Cost Prop

SFN 03 Bus Prop (Redact)
SFN 04 Cost Prop (Redact)
SFN 05 Required Forms

Business Proposal must be emailed as one individual
searchable PDF document.

vV © o o o

. Exceptions to the Sample Contract and/or the SOW
must be submitted in a red-lined Word version as
specified in Subparagraph 7.6.7 (Exceptions to Terms
and Conditions of Sample Contract and/or
Requirements of SOW and Attachments (Section G))
of this RFP.

. Note: SOW Attachments 3 through 9 are
provided only as references/samples.

. Exhibit 5 (CBE Information) of Appendix B (Required
Forms) must be submitted in Excel format.

»  Cost Proposal must be emailed as one individual excel
sheet.

» In addition, Proposers must also submit one redacted copy
of the Business Proposal and one redacted copy of the
Cost Proposal as individual searchable PDF documents,
with all confidential, proprietary and trade secret
information redacted. Proposer must specifically redact
only those parts of the Business and Cost Proposals that
are actual trade secrets, confidential, or proprietary in
nature. Blanket or categorical redactions and/or
statements of confidentiality, or the marking of every page
as "Trade Secret," "Confidential," or "Proprietary," is not
acceptable and will be rejected in the sole discretion of the
County.
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The total file size of the email, including all attachments, must
not exceed 35MB.
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Functional Requirements

Jurisdictional Change and Annexation

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment VII

Regmt Functional Requirements Requirement Description County Priority
General Requirements
JC-1 View of TRA and Taxing Entity The sygtem will support viewing of Tax Rate Area (TRA), taxing entity relationship, tax rate, taxing agency number, Must Have
and taxing agency name.
JC-2 Identify Redevelopment/EIFD TRA The system will provide thg ability to identify TRAs that include Enhanced Infrastructure Financing District (EIFD) Must Have
and Redevelopment agencies.
Identify City and Special District by Taxing . . . . e e .
JC-3 Agency Number The system will provide the ability to identify city and special district by taxing agency number. Must Have
Ability to Log Notes / Comments in the The system will provide the ability for the Auditor-Controller (A-C) staff to enter notes and comments in the system
JC-4 . L o Must Have
system that provide historical reference value for the jurisdictional change proposal.
Functional Requirements
Process Proposed Jurisdictional
Changes Requirements
JC-5 Assessor to Submit Proposed The system will provide an interface for the Assessor to submit the proposed jurisdictional change information, Must Have
Jurisdictional Change Information TRA and Assessor Identification Number (AIN)/parcel valuations, to the A-C electronically
The system will allow the user to verify the jurisdictional change types. Examples include but is not limited to the
following:
. o 1. City annexation (including detachment)
JC-6 |dentify Jurisdictional Change Type 2. Special District formations, annexations, detachments, and dissolutions. AT
3. TRA consolidation
JC-7 Prepare Revenue Estimates The system will provide the ability to calculate, prepare and store revenue estimate reports for jurisdictional change Must Have
proposals.
Ability to configure business rules to calculate revenue estimates utilizing various methods approved by the
County. Calculation methodologies include but are not limited to the following:
JC-8 Configure Business Rules for Calculations |1. City annexations utilize a calculation method that shift a percentage of base revenue and Annual Tax Increment Must Have
(ATI) factors.
2. Special District annexations utilize a calculation method that shifts a percentage of the applicable ATI factors.
3. TRA consolidations utilize a weighted average calculation methodology.
The system will have the ability to validate jurisdictional change data including but not limited to the following:
1. TRA and parcel assessed valuation information agrees with the equalized roll.
2. The taxing agency makeup accurately corresponds to the TRA.
Validate Data Before Processing 3. Validate the annexing taxing agency does not already exist in the TRAs / jurisdictional change proposal
JC-9 e Must Have
Proposed Jurisdictional Change boundary.
4. TRA ATI percentage factors total 1%.
The system will flag any validation errors and workflow to A-C or Assessor staff for review and correction.
JC-10 Validation Exceptions / Error Files The sy.stem will flag/rgject validation errors and produce an exception report / data file for the A-C or Assessor staff Must Have
for review and correction.
City Annexations
They system shall have the capability to identify a TRA in the city, adjacent to the proposed annexation boundary,
i . that has the same taxing agency makeup to be utilize in the revenue estimate calculation. If no matches are found,
JC-11 Locate Adjacent TRA the system shall identify and report the TRAs with a similar composition and identify the agencies that do not match ST
so they can be manually modified.
The system will have the ability for users to modify the taxing agency composition in the affected TRA for matching
: and calculation purpose. Modifications will not update the TRA ATI factors in production until jurisdictional change
JC-12 Modify Affected TRA is identified on the annual State Board of Equalization (BOE) TRA Change Notices and approved by A-C Must Have
Management.
The system shall have the ability to locate adjacent TRA based on modified TRA
Identify and View TRA(s) with Identical 1. The system will plr(.)wde the ability tq identify all TRA(s).m j[h? annexing city that have the same taxing agency
JC-13 Taxina Acency Makeu makeup as the modified affected TRA impacted by the jurisdictional change. Must Have
g Agency P 2. The system will allow users to view all the identified TRA(s) that have the same taxing agency composition as
the flagged modified TRA impacted by the jurisdictional change.
Review Proposed Jurisdictional
Change Requirements
The system will provide the ability for workflow to Supervisor/Section Manager to approve, reject, and override the
proposed jurisdictional change.
JC-14 Review and Approve Proposed * If rejected, the system will allow the user to update and resubmit after corrections are made. Must Have
Jurisdictional Change Revenue Estimate [+ The system will provide the ability to recalculate the revenue estimate after adjustments are made to components
such as proposed shifts to the base value transfer, ATl ratios, boundaries, values, etc.
The ability to override information, if applicable, with management approval.
JC-A15 Submit Proposed Jurisdictional Changes |Upon approval, the system will generate a cover letter and the revenue and ratio estimate report in PDF and Excel Must Have
to CEO to submit to the County Executive Office (CEO).
. : The system will have the ability for staff to upload approved resolution / supporting documentation and link it to the
JC-16 Ability to Upload Approved Resolutions proposed Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO)# and Jurisdictional change. MEEBIEE
Implement Annual BOE Jurisdictional
Changes
JC-17 BOE / Assessor Crosswalk Table I:aertssystem will provide a crosswalk table to identify and link the local Assessor TRA codes to the BOE TRA code Must Have




JC-18

View, and Track Changes Made due to
BOE Change Notices

Functional Requirements

The system will provide the ability to Datamine the information on the BOE Change Notice, such as use of Optical
Character Recognition (OCR) application. Differences between notices will be flagged for A-C staff to
research/verify the Jurisdictional Changes against the proposed resolution.

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment VII

Should Have

JC-19

TRA Maintenance

Ability for the user to make changes per the BOE Change Notices by roll year including but not limited to the
following:

. Adding new TRAs

. Splitting an existing TRA to a new TRA

. Splitting an existing TRA to an existing TRA

. Dissolve an existing TRA to a new TRA

. Dissolve an existing TRA to an existing TRA

. Adding new jurisdictional areas and assigning them to TRAs

. Dissolving jurisdictional agencies and removing them from associated TRAs

NOoO b WDN -

Must Have

JC-20

Update Taxing Entity Name

The system will provide the ability to update a taxing entity’s name.

Must Have

JC-21

Inactivate a Taxing Entity

The system will provide the ability to inactivate a taxing entity account.
The system will maintain the history of the taxing entity relationship.

Must Have

JC-22

Alter Taxing Entity Composition

The system will provide the ability to alter the taxing entity composition in a TRA.

Must Have

JC-23

Add New Taxing Entity

The system will provide the ability to add a new taxing entity.

Must Have

JC-24

BOE - Variance Analysis

The system will have the ability to reconcile against the BOE TRA Code Charts and to prior roll year TRA
information to identify any discrepancies in TRA numbers / count and taxing entities assigned to the corresponding
TRA. Variances will be flagged for review on an exception report.

Must Have

JC-25

Assessor - Variance Analysis

The system will have the ability to utilize a crosswalk table to reconcile and validate annual TRA, taxing entity and
valuation information against the Assessor system and roll to ensure accuracy and completeness prior to tax roll
extension.

Must Have

Process TRA Consolidation

JC-26

Process TRA Consolidation

The System will have the ability to process TRA consolidations.

1. The System will have the ability to provide the list of look-a-like TRAs that have the same taxing agency makeup
(1% and Debt Service). This list should segregate Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA), EIFD, and non-CRA
TRAs as a reference to compare against the final TRA Consolidation listing submitted for processing.

2. Once the BOE notifies the County that the TRA Consolidation filing is effective for the current year, the System
will have the ability to calculate the new ATI Ratios of the consolidated TRA. This calculation is done as follows:

a. The System will have the ability to interface with the Assessor’s system to extract the Current Year Secured and
Unsecured Assessed Values for all the look-a-like TRAs that will be consolidated into one TRA

b. Consolidated TRA Factor for each look-a-like TRA= (Sum of each look-alike TRA’s Secured and Unsecured
Assessed Valuation)/ Sum of all the look-a-like TRAs’ Secured and Unsecured Assessed Valuation

c. Weighted Average Factor of each look-alike TRA’s ATI Ratios = Consolidated TRA Factor of the look-alike TRA
* look-a-like TRA’s ATl ratios at the Agency Level

d. New Consolidated TRA’s ATl Ratio = Sum of Weighted Average Factors of all look-a-like TRA’s ATI Ratios

Must Have

Reporting Requirements

JC-27

County Standard Reports

The System will have the ability to generate and store standard County reports, identified by the A-C, that are used
on a regular basis or critical to the Jurisdictional Change business process. Reports include, but are not limited, to
those identified on Exhibit A, Statement of Work, Attachment 9, Reference Library.

Must Have

JC-28

County Ad hoc Reports/Data Analytics

The System will have the ability to query jurisdictional change data and create ad hoc County reports and provide
data analytics

Must Have

External Data Access Requirements

JC-29

Provide a Portal for County department
and external users to calculate
Jurisdictional Change ATI transfers

The system will provide a portal for county departments and external users to calculate jurisdictional change ATI
transfer information. The calculation output should include, but is not limited to the follows:

1. Effective Tax Year (Tax Rate Area)

2. Annexation Number (Tax Rate Area)

3. Affected TRA Number (Taxing Entity)

4. Taxing Agency Name (Taxing Entity)

5. Taxing Agency Number (Taxing Entity)

6. Tax Sharing Ratio (Taxing Entity)

Must Have
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Roll Valuation

Regmt |Functional Requirements Requirement Description County Priority
General Requirements
RV-1 Receiving Assessment Roll Files ;/I'g:rsystem will have the ability to receive the assessment roll via interface files and store roll information by roll Must Have
RV-2 Suspend Corrections The system will have the ability to suspend corrections during the roll load process Must Have
RV-3 Identify Roll Type The §ystem will have thg ability to identify roll type (secured, unsecured, supplemental, unitary) and roll type Must Have
identifier with the roll being loaded.
RV-4 Identify Parcel Type The system will have the ability to identify parcel type (i.e. aircraft, mobile homes, possessory interest, etc.) Must Have
Ability to Add Notes / Scanned The system will have the ability for the Auditor-Controller (A-C) to add notes and/or scanned documents and
RV-5 . . Must Have
Documents associate them to the roll being loaded.
Crosswalk Table - Map BOE TRA The system will provide a crosswalk table to identify and store the state Board of Equalization (BOE) Tax Rate
RV-6 Numbers to LA County Assessor . . Must Have
. Area (TRA) numbers to the corresponding TRA number assigned by the local assessor.
Assigned TRA Numbers
Functional Requirements
Generate Roll Values Requirements
Load Local Assessment Roll Values
Requirements
RV-7 Establishing a New Tax Roll Year '(I;?ﬁciystem will provide the ability to support the preparation of a new tax year annually as requested by the A-C Must Have
The System will provide the ability to support the creation of the secured assessed roll and unsecured
RV-8 Secured and Unsecured Roll Creation assessed roll as certified by the Assessor. Must Have
The locally assessed roll will include the assessed values on the secured and the unsecured rolls.
. The system must summarize the total value of the Homeowner Exemptions on the secured and unsecured rolls
RV-9 Homeowner Exemption - Summary ) . . : Must Have
by TRA, incorporated areas , unincorporated areas and provide a Countywide summary total.
The System will provide the ability to reconcile the local assessment unsecured and secured roll files to the data
loaded to the system. Roll data that will be reconciled includes but is not limited to the following:
1. Total number of parcels and assessments (secured and unsecured)
2. Total assessments Value by (secured and unsecured)
a. Land
b. Improvement
RV-10 |Local Assessment Roll Reconciliation ¢. Fixture Must Have
d. Personal Property
e. Exemptions
3. Total count of TRAs and values
4. Totals of all Secured Values in County
5. Totals of all Unsecured values in County
All errors will be flagged and reported as exceptions for A-C review.
. The system will have the ability to compare the assessment roll from prior tax roll year to the current tax roll year
Local Assessment Roll - Variance : . . . . . .
RV-11 Analvsis and perform a variance analysis to identify growth, differences and flag variances for A-C review based on Must Have
y configurable business rules.
The System will provide the ability to flag and report the following data for special handling:
RV-12 |Flag New and Deleted TRA's 1. New TRA number compared to previous year TRA numbers for local and state assessed rolls Must Have
2. Deleted TRA number compared to previous year TRA numbers for local and state assessed rolls
The System will provide the ability to generate Taxing Agency valuation reconciliations at the TRA/Agency level.
The Taxing Agency Valuations will include, but is not limited, to the following data:
1. Gross Taxable Value of the Secured Roll
2. Gross Taxable Value of the Unsecured Roll minus Non-Commercial Aircraft
RV-13 Local Assessed Roll - Agency 3. Sum of Non-Commercial Aircraft Must Have
Reconciliation 4. Local Roll = Sum of the Gross Taxable Value of the Secured Roll + Gross Taxable Value of the Unsecured
Roll + Non-Commercial Aircraft
5. Total of Homeowners Exemptions
6. Total Other State Exemptions (if applicable)
7. Total of Gross Taxable Value from the assessor locally assessed roll
RV-14  |Non-Commercial Aircraft Summary igiSystem will provide the ability to compile, display detail and sum of Non-Commercial Aircraft values by Must Have
The System will provide the ability to support verification of the summary of the secured and unsecured roll:
Secured and Unsecured Roll 1. Fully assessed property values by TRA o
RV-15 . 2. Fully assessed property values located within incorporated areas Must Have
Miscellaneous Summary . .
3. Fully assessed property values located in unincorporated areas
4. Sum of totals to ensure they agree with the Locally assessed secured and unsecured rolls
The System will provide the ability to display, store and report taxing agency valuations:
Secured and Unsecured Valuation 1. Gross taxable secured and unsecured values less exemptions.
RV-16 Summary by Taxing Agenc 2. Summarized by Gross Taxable Value for the secured and unsecured roll Must Have
y by g Agency 3. Sum of all Homeowners Exemptions and other state exemptions if applicable located within the District
Summary of Net Taxable Value.
Load State Assessed Values
Requirements
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RV-17

Loading BOE State Assessment Roll

System will have the ability to upload BOE preliminary and final assessment roll files and store BOE final roll
information including, but not limited to:

1. BOE Utility Company Categorization

2. Assessee Number (BOE No), Billing Name, DBA Name, Care of

3. Address, City, State, Zip+4, Country, Foreign Zip

4. County ldentifier, TRA, Property Class, Roll Year, Description, Assessed Value, Exempt Flag

5. Land, Improvements, Personal Property, Valuation Totals

Must Have

RV-18

BOE Final Assessment Roll

The system will have the ability to compare the BOE preliminary roll to the BOE final roll and identify/report all
differences.

Must Have

RV-19

State Assessed Values Summary

The System will provide the ability to do the following:

1. Summarize count of secured by Cities (incorporated areas)

2. Summarize count of secured by Unincorporated areas

3. Summarize secured totals by Cities (incorporated areas)

4. Summarize secured totals by Unincorporated areas.

5. Summarize secured property that is allocated countywide (example Inter-county Pipeline)

Must Have

RV-20

Roll Valuation — State Assessed Roll
Reconciliation

The System will provide the ability to support the reconciliation between the State Assessed roll values to the
Auditor-Controller's load of State Assessed roll values:

1. Total Unitary, Nonunitary & Operating Nonunitary Property Value

2. Total Intercounty Pipeline Value

3. Total Unitary Regulated Railway Value

4. Total Unitary Qualified Property

5. Grand Total of Unitary and Non-Unitary Value

Must Have

Resolve TRA Errors Requirements

RV-21

Mismatch SBE TRA

The System will provide the ability to flag and report the data where the BOE TRA data does not match the LA
County Assessor Crosswalk table.

The System will provide the ability to generate an email notification requesting TRA Corrections from the
Assessors and attaching the exception report.

Must Have

RV-22

Mismatch SBE TRA Corrections

The System will provide the ability to Extract, Transform and Load data from the Assessors’ interface file that
contain corrected TRA information and to notify Property Tax Apportionment Division that the file is ready for
review purposes. System will also have the ability for A-C to manually load or the ability input the TRA corrected
data in eTAX.

Must Have

RV-23

TRA Mapping to Assessment and Districts

The System will provide the ability to manually do the following:
1. Assign TRA number to an assessment.
2. Assign TRA numbers to taxing agencies.

Must Have

CRA / EIFD Values Requirements

RV-24

Calculate Secured CRA Increment Values

The System will provide the ability to calculate the CRA increment for the Secured Roll.
1. The calculation is as follows:

a. CRA Increment (Tax Rate Area, Taxing Agency) = CRA Project Current Year Secured Gross Taxable
Values - CRA Project Base Year Secured Gross Taxable Value

b. CRA Increment (Tax Rate Area, Taxing Agency) = CRA Project Current Year Secured HOX Values - CRA
Project Base Increment Secured HOX Values. Increment Values are calculated for Frozen (Established Base).

c. CRA Increment (Tax Rate Area, Taxing Agency) = CRA Project Current Year Secured Net Taxable Values -
CRA Project Base Increment Secured Net Taxable Value. Increment Values are calculated for Base Increment
(Established Base).

Must Have

RV-25

Calculate Unsecured CRA Increment
Values

The System will provide the ability to calculate the Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) and Enhanced
Infrastructure Financing District (EIFD) increment for the Unsecured Roll.

The calculation is as follows:

1. CRA Increment = CRA Project Current Year Unsecured Gross Taxable Values - CRA Project Established
Base Year Unsecured Gross Taxable Value

2. CRA Increment = CRA Project Current Year Unsecured Homeowners Exemptions (HOX) Values - CRA
Project Base Increment Unsecured HOX Values.

3 CRA Increment = CRA Project Current Year Unsecured Net Taxable Values excluding Non-Commercial
Aircraft (NCA) - CRA Project Base Increment Unsecured Net Taxable Value excluding Non-Commercial Aircraft
(NCA). Increment Values are calculated for Base Increment (Established Base).

4. CRA Increment = CRA Project Current Year Non-Commercial Aircraft Value - CRA Project Base Year Non-
Commercial Aircraft Value. Increment Values are calculated for Base Increment (Established Base)

Must Have

RV-26

Store CRA Increment Values

The System will provide the ability to store the following:

1. Equalized roll secured CRA increment for the current tax year .

2. Equalized roll unsecured CRA increment for the current tax year .

3. Equalized roll state assessed non unitary CRA increment for the current tax year .

4. Equalized secured, unsecured and state assessed CRA increment for the current tax year summarized by
Tax Rate Area.

5. Equalized secured, unsecured and state assessed CRA increment for the current tax year summarized by
District .

Must Have

Create Equalized Roll Requirements
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The System will provide the ability to support the creation of equalized roll that is combination of the following
1. Approved secured roll
2. Approved unsecured roll
. . 3. Approved state assessed roll
RV-27  |Equalized Roll Creation 4. Following roll change types till August 20 IS A ENis
a. Secured roll change
b. Unsecured Roll Change
c. BOE Roll Change
The System will provide the ability to store and display the Equalized Roll values at the TRA and Agency level
and generate the Equalized Roll reconciliation to validate the TRA Value Summary to the District Value
Summary.
1. Net taxable value for the secured and unsecured roll for property located within the incorporated areas.
. I 2. Net taxable value for the secured and unsecured roll for property located in unincorporated areas.
Equalized Roll Reconciliation - TRA and . . .
RV-28 S 3. Homeowner Exemption totals for property located with the incorporated area Must Have
District Values . . :
4. Homeowner Exemption totals for property located with the unincorporated area
7. Total of the Locally Assessed Roll
8. Summary of the State Assessed Roll
9. Total of all Homeowner Exemptions for the County
10. Gross Total Value of the Equalized Roll
RV-29 |Equalized Roll - Variance Analysis The S.ystem will have the abl|lt¥ to compa.re the previous year Equalized Roll Totals to the curr.ent year Must Have
Equalized Roll Totals and provide the variance amount and percentage between the comparative rolls.
RV-30 |Approve Equalized Roll The system will have the ability to workflow and support the electronic approval of the equalized roll. Must Have
RV-31 |Equalized Roll Archival Evidence The system will have the ability to archive and lock the Equalized Roll from further edits after it is approved. Must Have
Reporting Requirement Reporting
The System will have the ability to generate and store standard County reports, identified by the A-C, that are
RV-32 |County Standard Reports used on a regular basis or critical to the Roll Valuation business process. Reports include, but are not limited, to Must Have
those identified on Exhibit A, Statement of Work, Attachment 9, Reference Library.
RV-33  |County Ad hoc Reports/Data Analytics Zzslii}gem will have the ability to query roll valuation data and create ad hoc County reports and provide data Must Have
External Data Access Requirements
RV-34 |Valuation Data file The System will provide the ability to generate / Merge Valuation data file to external agency. Must Have
The System will provide the ability to generate reports specific to each corresponding taxing agency so they can
RV-35 Agency Dashboard and Online access on Agency Dashboards / Reporting portal: Must Have

Submission Access

1. Assessed Valuation Reports
2. Prior Year Unitary Revenue Reports




Tax Rate Calculation

Functional Requirements
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Regmt Functional Requirements Requirement Description County Priority
General Requirements
The system will provide a web portal for authorized taxing agency users to upload tax rate documentation,
including but not limited to:
TRC-1 Web Portal 1. Balance to be Raised Must Have
2. Board Resolutions approving/adopting a tax rate
3. Supporting Documentation
Levying Taxing Agency Contact List/ |The system will have the ability to maintain a contact list of all taxing agencies that levy a tax rate and have the
TRC-2 e o e e o . Must Have
Notifications ability to send notifications communicating tax year deadlines.
The system will have the ability to calculate and levy the following types of tax rates:
1. General rates - levied on all taxable assessed valuations net of exemptions
TRC-3 Tax Rate Types 2. Land and Improvement rates - levy is restricted to real property (land and improvement valuations and is gross Must Have
of exemptions).
3. Land only rates - levied on taxable land values only, gross of exemptions.
Functional Requirements
Debt Management
Set Up Bond Authorization
Requirements
The system will provide the ability to maintain a one-to-many relationship between each County school district and
Maintain Bond and District its voter approved bond issuances.
TRC-4 Relationshi » Each school district issues several bonds and each bond is assigned a specific tax account number for tax rate Must Have
P calculation and electronic Countywide Accounting and Purchasing System (eCAPS) Fund/dept/unit code. Tax rate
is calculated per bond/tax account number.
The system will provide the ability to enter, update, and view the school bond election authorization limit. The
system will provide the ability to update the balance of a school bond election authorization limit when a school
issues bonds per Board adopted resolution.
TRC-5 Enter, U ante, a n.d View Bond The system will provide the ability to flag and report a new school bond issuance exceeding the school bond Could Have
Authorization Limit . R
election authorization limit.
The system will provide the ability to interface with eCAPS Financials and Debt Management for bond information
and debt service schedules.
The system will allow the user to view scanned images of the School District’s Election Authorization
TRC-6 Store/View Bond Authorization Documentation. Should Have
Documentation « pdf/scanned copy of the school bonds Official Statement (cover/first page) and final pricing numbers, and debt
service schedule (Excel version) are uploaded in eCAPS Debt Management.
Review Bond Authorization
Requirements
TRC-7 Bond Authorization Limitation The system will ensure that bond amount does not exceed the authorized unissued bond election amount. Could Have
The system will provide the ability to approve or reject the school bond authorization information. The A-C
TRC-8 Approve Bond Authorization Limit Accounting Division, Bond Accounting Unit will be provided either data entry rights (Unit staff) or approval rights Could Have
(Unit supervisor or Section Manager).
Enter Debt Service Schedule
Requirements
. The system will provide the ability to allow a new debt service schedule to be uploaded to an existing bonds/tax
Upload New Debt Service Schedule for SN . . ) . ,
TRC-9 i account number when a school district’s existing bond is partially refunded. The partially refunded bonds’ old debt Could Have
Partially Refunded School Bond . : . L
service schedule should still be saved in the system (historical data).
TRC-10 Import Debt Service Schedule The _system will provide the ability to import debt service schedule data or interface with eCAPS for the debt Could Have
service data.
Review Debt Service Schedule
Requirements
The system will provide the ability for user to generate a complete list of school district outstanding debt service
TRC-11 Approve Debt Service Schedule information by a specified period/year. Accounting Division, Financial Analysis Section will review, reject, or Could Have
approve for use in the annual tax rate calculation the generated debt service schedule information.
TRC-12 Enter, Update, anc! View Debt Service The system will provide the ability to enter, update, and view the debt service schedule data/information. Could Have
Schedule Information
Maintain Bond Information
Requirements
TRC-13 Add Fiscal Fee The system will provide the ability to enter, update, and view the fiscal fee. Could Have
Identify and Display Debt Service : . . . . . .
TRC-14 Payment Due in User Specified Time The §¥stem will provide the ability to identify and display debt service payment due amount based on user Could Have
specified time frame.
Frame
The system will provide the ability to calculate the reserve requirement as follows:
2-Year Levy = |(50%* Debt Service Amount in the upcoming eighteen months - Fund Balance Available) + Fund
Balance Available — Debt Service Amount from July 1st of the current year to April 30th of the next fiscal year)| x 2.
Calculate Reserve Requirement
TRC-15 Amount The system will provide the ability to accommodate on a proposed school bond issuance for it’s first 18 months’ Sl InEe
estimated principal and interest as debt service requirement and reserve requirement per school district.
Note: Reserve Requirement is the last 6 months in the 18-Month Cash Flow Test.
TRC-16 Add Reserve Requirement The system will provide the ability to enter, update, and view the reserve requirement. Could Have
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Review Reserve Requirement and
Fiscal Fee Requirements

TRC-17

Approve Reserve Requirement and
Fiscal Fee

The system will provide the ability for user to approve or reject the reserve requirement and fiscal fee information.

The system will provide the ability for Accounting Division, Financial Analysis Section to perform review and
approval of all school bonds/tax account reserve requirements in one generated table of data (faster and more
efficiently).

1. There are 800+ of reserve requirement to review and approve if done individually.
2. The system will provide the ability to query and generate a table or data file with all the school bonds tax
accounts/funds with any of the following data for review and approval:

a. Fund balances available, debt service requirements, net debt requirements, adjusted assessed valuations,
calculated tax rates, and calculated tax amount (for confirmation/control).

b. Adjusted assessed valuation calculation
c. Unsecured taxes collections calculation
d. Estimated interest revenue
e. June apportionment (3rd and 4th paid secured tax ledgers)
f. Cash flow test/evaluation
g. Delinquency rates calculation
h. Tax rates two year comparison by tax accounts
i. Tax rates two year comparison summary by school district
j. Tax rates analysis per $100,000 valuation by school district
3. The system will provide the ability to flag/track/report Prop 39 levy rate limits:
a. $60 for unified schools
b. $30 for elementary and high school
c. $25 for community colleges
d.Generate a notification letter to any school district exceeding the levy limit.

Could Have

Evaluate Bond Cash Flow
Requirements

TRC-18

Review Available Cash Balance in
Bond Fund

The system will provide the ability to interface with eCAPS (in real time) and allow the ability to review the
available cash balance in the bond fund from eCAPS .

Could Have

TRC-19

Perform Bond Cash Flow Evaluation

The system will provide the ability to perform the bond cash flow evaluation as follow:

Bond cash flow evaluation calculation = 50% * (Debt Service Amount in the upcoming eighteen months - Fund
Balance Available) + Fund Balance Available — Debt Service Amount from July 1st of the current year to April 30th
of the next fiscal year

The system will provide the ability to flag the bond fund if the bond cash flow evaluation result is negative.
Bond Cash Flow Evaluation/Test is calculated by each bond issuance or tax account.

1. Cash flow calculation evaluation/test is to estimate as of April 1 (50% collection) and as of May 1 (90%
collection) of the tax rate year if each school bonds debt service fund or tax account will have sufficient cash to
cover the bond debt requirement. If the April 1 or May 1 estimated cash balance result is negative,
calculate the 2-Year Levy adjustment amount to be added to the tax rate calculation to cover the estimated
deficiency. In addition, if the bonds will mature on the tax year, we do not include the calculated 2-Year Levy in the
tax rate calculation.

2-Year Levy Adjustment Amount Formula for an April 1 Negative: Amount / 50%

2-Year Levy Adjustment Amount Formula for a May 1 Negative: Amount/ 90%
2. Cash Flow Evaluation Test Formula for April 1 (at 50% collections):

a. Calculate the Projected April 1 Tax Collections (July 1 to June 30 principal and interests + July 1 to Dec 31 of
the following FY principal and interests) — June 30 cash balance = Net bond debt requirement x 50% = Projected
April 1 Tax Collections (Note: If June 30 cash balance exceeds the 18 months bond debt requirement, Projected
April 1 Tax Collections should be zero instead of a negative amount.)

b. Calculate the Projected Cash Balance at April 1
June 30 Cash Balance — Projected April 1 Tax Collections = Projected April 1 Cash Balance (Note: If amount is
negative, see 2-Year Adjustment formula for April 1 above; derived amount is used in the school bonds tax rate
calculation; except if bond is maturing.)

3. Cash Flow Evaluation Test Formula for May 1 (at 90% collections):

a. Calculate the Projected May 1 Tax Collections
(July 1 to June 30 principal and interests + July 1 to Dec 31 of the following FY principal and interests) — June 30
cash balance = Net bond debt requirement x 90% = Projected May 1 Tax Collections (Note: If June 30 cash
balance exceeds the 18 months bond debt requirement, Projected May 1 Tax Collections should be zero instead of
a negative amount.)

b. Calculate the Projected Cash Balance at May 1
June 30 Cash Balance — Projected May 1 Tax Collections = Projected May 1 Cash Balance (Note: If amount is
negative, see 2-Year Adjustment formula for May 1 above; derived amount is used in the school bonds tax rate
calculation; except if bond is maturing.)

Could Have

Review Bond Cash Flow
Requirements

TRC-20

Review Bond Cash Flow Evaluation

The system will allow the user (Accounting Division, Financial Analysis Section) to review, approve, and reject the
bond cash flow evaluation.

The system will provide the ability to generate a summarized listing of records (tax accounts/school bond fund) of
the bond cash flow evaluation for review and approval. Once approved, the system will calculate and analyze the 2
Year levy for inclusion in the debt service requirement for tax rates calculation.

The system will provide the ability for user to view school bonds cash flow requirements per screen and the
capability to drill down to the individual bond detail for update.

Could Have

Generate Tax Rates Requirements
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Balance to Be Raised Requirements

TRC-21

Uploading Balance to be Raised for
School GO Bond Issues

If the system does not provide a debt management module for the A-C Accounting Division to calculate the balance
to be raised for school General Obligation (GO) bond issues, the system will provide the ability for the A-C
Accounting Division to submit the balance to be raised via an interface file or to upload via a web portal to start the
tax rate calculation process.

Must Have

TRC-22

Non-School Bonds

System will provide the ability for (non-school) taxing agencies to submit the following via a web portal to start the
calculation process:

1. Taxing agencies may remit the balance to be raised. A-C / System will calculate the tax rate that needs to be
levied to raise sufficient fund.

2. Taxing agencies may remit the tax rate and resolution approved by their governing board. A-C/System will
calculate the estimated taxes that will be raised with the tax rate being levied.

Must Have

Calculate Delinquency Rate
Requirements

TRC-23

Calculate Secured Delinquency Rate

The system will calculate the current year secured delinquency rate as follows:

1. Adjusted Secured Net Charge = prior year District Secured Original Charge +/ - prior year District Net Roll
Changes — prior year Redevelopment Payment +/- prior year Redevelopment Adjustment
2. Adjusted Balance Due = Adjusted Secured Net Charge (Taxing Entity) — Prior year District Secured Net
Apportionment Amount (Tax Revenue Distribution)

a. Current year Secured Delinquency Rate = Adjusted Balance Due / Adjusted Secured Net Charge

b. Delinquency Rate Calculation for School Bonds is based on the Debt Service (DS) tax accounts data from the
secured 2nd paid tax ledger (April), Secured Delinquency Rate (DS) = Adjusted Balance Due (DS) / Net Charge
(DS)

c. The secured 2nd paid tax ledger in April is used for the delinquency rate and the 3-year average delinquency
rate is used for the school bonds tax rates calculation.

Must Have

TRC-24

Bi-Annual Delinquency Rate
Calculation

The system will provide the ability to calculate the district delinquency rate on demand or at a minimum twice a
year based on the second apportionment schedule date and fourth apportionment schedule date.

Must Have

TRC-25

Calculate Delinquency Rate Based on
Historical Average

The system will have the ability to calculate an average delinquency rate using historical data. If the system has
the last three years delinquency rate data, the system will calculate the current year 3-year average delinquency
rate as follow:

Current year Delinquency Rate based on past 3-year average = (Prior year Delinquency Rate[ + (Prior year — 1)
Delinquency Rate +(Prior year — 2) Delinquency Rate) / 3

The system will use the delinquency rate data from the past three years’ second apportionments to calculate the
past three year delinquency average.

1. If the calculated current year delinquency rate based on past three years average is higher than 15%, the system
will use the current year non-averaged rate based on the fourth apportionment as soon as it is available.

2. If the system does not have the bond’s delinquency data for the past three years but two years, the system will
calculate the current year 2-year average delinquency rate.

3. If the system only has prior year’s delinquency data, the system will use the prior year’s delinquency rate as the
current year delinquency rate.

4. If a school district has no outstanding bonds and issued a new bond and the system does not have any historical
delinquency rate data, the system will set the current year delinquency rate to a user predefined default percentage
rate (5%).

Must Have

TRC-26

Historical Delinquency Rates

The system will provide the ability to review the historical delinquency rates.

The system will provide the ability to generate a 3-year delinquency rates report listing by school districts debt
service accounts and the current year delinquency rates (secured 2nd paid and 4th paid tax ledger delinquency
rate by school district tax accounts 1% and DS).

Must Have

TRC-27

Review / Approve Delinquency Rate

The system will provide the ability for A-C user to approve or reject the current year secured delinquency rate.
Once approved, the delinquency rate schedule is generated for inclusion in the annual debt service tax rates
calculation.

Must Have

TRC-28

Override Delinquency Rate

The system will provide the ability to override the current year secured delinquency rate for debt service tax rate
calculation on certain cases.

Must Have

Debt Service Rate Calculation
Requirements

TRC-29

Secured Debt Service Rate Calculation

The system will calculate the current year secured debt service rate for each school district bond issuance (tax
account) as follow:

1. Current year each School District Bond Issuance or Tax Account Secured Debt Service Rate = (Net Amount
Required / Adjusted Secured Net Value) + 0.000001

2. Net Amount Required = (Debt Service Amount in the upcoming eighteen months + Reserve Amount) — Fund
Balance Available - (each School District Bond Issuance or tax account Unsecured Rate Net * Prior year Secured
each School District Bond Issuance or tax account Debt Rate)

3. Adjusted Secured Taxable Net Value = Current year district’'s Secured Taxable Net Value (Taxing Entity) * (1 —
Delinquency Rate) + District Secured Homeowner Exemption (Taxing Entity)

Must Have

TRC-30

Interface eCAPS Cash balances

The system will provide the ability to Interface with eCAPS Financials as data sources to obtain the June 30 cash
balances, estimated interest revenue, and school bond debt service.

Must Have

TRC-31

Other Counties' Assessed Valuations /
Tax Rate

The system will provide the ability to include to a school district bond/tax account’s Adjusted Secured Taxable Net
Value another County’s assessed valuation and HOX data in order to complete its tax rate calculation.

Must Have
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TRC-32 Tax Rate Adjustments The system ywll provide the ability to.lr?clude adj.ustments due to corrections for prior year e.rro.rs, large Assessor Must Have
Roll Corrections, County Counsel opinion/lawsuits, etc. to calculated tax rate on a school district bond tax account.
The system will have the ability to configure validation rules and perform a variance analysis on current year debt
service tax rate data compared to prior year and flag variances greater than a configurable percentage.
TRC-33 Valldat.e Tax Rates / Perform Variance |1. Balance to be raised Must Have
Analysis 2. Assessed Values
3. Reserves
4. Tax Rates
Review Locally Assessed Debt
Service Rate Requirements
The system will provide the ability to approve or reject the locally assessed debt service rates (schools and non-
school debt rates).
Approve Locally Assessed Debt The system will provide the ability for user to generate a table or data file to approve school districts’ bond
TRC-34 . , . . o . Must Have
Service Rate issuance tax rates more quickly and efficiently. Once approved, the school districts bond debt service tax rates
resolution is generated for submission for discussion and approval with Auditor-Controller management prior to
finalizing for submission to the Board for approval and adoption.
Generate Board Resolution
Requirements
The system will provide the ability to generate the board resolution attachment.
The system will provide the ability to save and review the generated board resolution attachment.
TRC-35 Generate Board Resolution Attachment|School district bonds tax rates Board resolution is by school bonds tax accounts and includes school bonds tax Must Have
rates from other counties (example: Orange County and San Bernardino County) wherein Los Angeles County
(LAC) needs to levy taxes since the school district's boundaries border both counties. The school district issued
bonds wherein LAC and another county in its border are part of the bond issuance (per Bond Official Statement).
Calculate SBE Unitary Debt Service
Rate Requirements
The system will provide the ability to view the SBE unitary debt service rate calculation factors such as:
1.Growth rate in Equalized Roll (Auditor Value)
2. Growth rate in SBE Unitary Tax Value
. . . 3. Prior year’s Unitary Debt Service Rate
TRC-36 \éz\évulsa?ignupgsgrfebt Service Rate 4. Current Year’s Unitary Valuation Total Assessed Value in AD HOC Report (Unitary Value) Must Have
5. Prior Year’s Debt Service Current Charge amount in Apportionment Summary Report (Original Charge Parcel &
Mobile Home)
6. Second Prior Year’'s Debt Service Current Charge amount in Apportionment Summary Report (Original Charge
Parcel & Mobile Home)
TRC-37 Use Equalized RO.” for SBE Unitary The system will use the prior year equalized roll for the calculation of current year SBE unitary tax rate. Must Have
Tax Rate Calculation
The system will calculate the SBE unitary tax rate as follow:
1. Percentage of Difference of two Fiscal Years = Countywide Secured Debt Service Levy (Immediate Prior Year) /
Countywide Secured Debt Service Levy (Second Prior Year)
2. Current Year’s Final SBE Unitary Debt Service Tax Rate = Percentage of Difference of two Fiscal Years * Prior
TRC-38 Calculate SBE Unitary Tax Rate Year's SBE Unitary Debt Service Rate Must Have
3. Current Year’s Unitary Value (Total Assessed Value) = Current Year’s (Unitary + Pipeline + Unitary Railroad +
Unitary Electric)
4. Current Year’'s Unitary Debt Service Levy = Current Year’s Unitary Value (Total Assessed Value) * Current
Year’s Final SBE Unitary Debt Service Tax Rate
Review SBE Unitary Debt Service
Rate Requirements
Approve SBE Unitary Debt Service The system will provide the ability to approve or reject the SBE unitary tax rate by the Unit Supervisor/Section
TRC-39 . . . . . ) Must Have
Rate Manager. If rejected, users will review and adjust the calculations as needed and resubmit for approval.
The system will provide the ability to override the SBE unitary tax rate by TRA or by individual parcel. The user
must provide the override reason and submit to the Unit Supervisor/Section Manager for approval.
Override SBE Unitary Debt Service
TRC-40 Rate For example, the system will allow the ability to apply the lower of the SBE unitary tax rate or the BOE-determined Ll
tax rate applicable to certain railroads. This BOE-determined tax rate that is applicable to private railroad
companies is published by the BOE around the 1st week of July every year.
Establishing New Debt Service
Accounts
Creating New Agency Debt Service
Accounts
TRC-41 New Debt Service Accounts The system will provide the ability for A-C users to create new debt service accounts upon request. Must Have
The system will provide the ability to add or modify the description that will be printed on secured tax bills detailing
the debt service rate.
TRC-42 Update and View Debt Must Have

Account/Description for Tax Bills

The system will have the ability to modify and detail the city employee compensation bond account.
1. Modify the levying city’s name to “City Emp Pension”
2. Add breakdown of city’s General Obligation Bond rate and City Emp Pension rate

TRA Database updates
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The system will provide the ability to add, delete, update, and view the Tax Rate Area (TRA) information on TRA
Add, Update and Delete Debt Service database; currently known as County Rate (CR) Database in LA County.
TRC-43 Accounts on TRA Database Table Must Have
Bond Debt Accounts will be added to all TRAs located in the school / taxing agency boundaries authorized they are
authorized to levy a tax rate.
The system will provide the ability to upload TRA updates to the TRA Database using interface files and have the
ability for A-C staff to view posted data.
Mass Updates and Viewing Data 1. Add Valid TRA
TRC-44 2. Copy TRA structure from Main Account to its Sub Accounts Must Have
3. Delete TRA
4. Add / Update Agency Tax Rates
The system will provide the ability to create rate files.
1. Secured Rate File for regular parcels
2. Water Rate File for mobile home parcels (water district rates are suppressed). Rates used to extend mobile
TRC-45 Create Rate Files home assessments per Water Code 20220 which states that mobile homes are not subject to water district debt Must Have
service.
The system will provide the ability to configure a new Rate File that may be required in the future by new
legislations.
Calculate TRA Tax Rate
Requirements
TRC-46 gzlce:u'la\ar:aeaTax Rate for All Valid Tax The system will calculate tax rate for every valid tax rate area for the current tax year. Must Have
TRA Tax Rate by Tax Type Calculation |The system will calculate the TRA tax rate as follow:
TRC-47 TRA Tax Rate = 1% + Summation of all District Debt Rate for a TRA. Must Have
TRC-48 Tax Rate Subtotals By Agency Types The .system will bg aple to create subtotals of the tax rates according to the type of agency, such as City, Water Must Have
District, School District, etc.
The system will calculate the Tax Rate Area Percentage as follow:
Tax Rate Area Percentage = original Account Tax Rate divided by TRA Total Tax Rate:
TRA Tax Rate TRA District Percentage
TRC-49 | 12x Rate Area Percentage General Levy (1%) 1.000% (1.000/1.065) = 0.938967 = 93.89% Must Have
District 1 Debt Service A 0.015% (0.015/1.065) = 0.014084 = 1.41%
District 2 Debt Service B 0.020% (0.020/1.065) = 0.018779 = 1.88%
District 6 Debt Service C 0.030% (0.030/1.065) = 0.028169 = 2.82%
Total TRA 1.065% (1.065/1.065) = 1.000000 = 100.00%
Reporting Requirements
The System will have the ability to generate and store standard County reports, identified by the A-C, that are used
TRC-50 County Standard Reports on a regular basis or critical to the Tax Rate Calculation process. Reports include, but are not limited, to those Must Have
identified on Exhibit A, Statement of Work, Attachment 9, Reference Library.
TRC-51 County Ad hoc Reports/Data Analytics Z::li?/:stem will have the ability to query Tax Rate data and create ad hoc County reports and provide data Must Have
External Data Access Requirements
TRC-52 A-C CR Data To Assessor The system will proylde the ability to generate final County Rate (CR) Database for Department of Assessor for Must Have
subsequent processing.
Agency Name and Secured Tax Rates |The system will provide the ability to generate extracts for Accounting Division for subsequent processing:
TRC-53 Extracts To eCAPS / A-C Accounting |1. Agency Name Report Must Have
Division 2. Agency Secured Tax Rates Report
TRC-54 TRA Look Up To A-C Website 'tl)'c?r;):tem will provide the ability to generate extracts for A-C Website for TRA Look Up to view Tax Rates levied Must Have
The system will provide the ability to post reports for the Property Tax Reporting Portal:
1. Secured Tax Rates and Ratios (Secured Rates)
2. Tax Rate List (Secured Rates)
TRC-55 | CR Reports To Property Tax Report 15" pote Ghart By Tax Types) Must Have

Central Website

4. Agency-TRA Cross Reference (Final)
5. Typical City Rates
6. Tax Rate Resolution (Letter of Adoption By Board of Supervisors)
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Regmt |Functional Requirements Requirement Description County Priority
General Requirements
DA-1 Direct Assessment Web Portal The_ system will r_)rov@e an mterpal and external sepure self-service web portal for taxing agencies to upload, Must Have
certify and submit their annual direct assessment file to be placed on the annual tax roll.
Ability to maintain current and historical contact information for users and a distribution list for notifications and
messages to taxing agencies and designated users. Contact information should include, but not limited to, the
following:
1. Name
DA-2 DIS’[I’Ibu.tIOﬂ List / Contact 2. T|tlg Must Have
Information 3. Taxing Agency
4. Phone number
5. Email address
6. Mailing address
7. Agency website address
Tracking Progress - Annual The system will provide the ability to track and display progress of direct assessment data transmittal
DA-3 e Do : . : Must Have
Submissions submissions and required documentation by taxing agency and roll year.
DA-4 Management Dashboards Itr;?uzystem shall provide management dashboards that report direct assessment statistics and submission file Must Have
Store, Retrieve and View Direct |Portal shall have the ability to store, retrieve, view and download annual submission files and supporting
DA-5 . . Must Have
Assessment Submission Files  |documents by tax roll year.
DA-6 Portal Help Desk The D.|recft Assessr.nent. Web Portal shgll prov@e a help desk link for agencies tq submit a ticket when they are Must Have
experiencing technical issues that require Auditor-Controller (A-C) or vendor assistance.
Ability to configure, maintain/upload and publish Direct Assessment forms/templates. Examples include, but are
not limited to:
1. Direct Assessment Submission Procedure Manual
2. Contract / Billing agreement template
Direct Assessment Submission 3. New direct assessment account request form
DA-7 4. Vendor/ACH form (for new accounts or change in banking) Must Have
Procedure Manual and Forms :
5. Agency Information Sheet (AIS) form
6. Authorization form for consultant acting on behalf of taxing agency
7. Direct Assessment Data Transmittal form
8. Bill description modification form
9. Direct assessment correction request forms
Ability to enable and disable the portal for maintenance / updates.
DA-8 Disabling Portal 1. Annual submissions will be disabled prior to tax roll extension. Must Have
2. Annual corrections will be enabled after tax roll extension.
Ability to configure/update/assign direct assessment fees and designate fee types. Types of fees include but are
not limited to the following:
i Direct Assessment Processing |1. New taxing agency account Set-up fee ($250)
DA-9 Fee Schedule 2. Annual account processing fee ($50) BRI
3. Direct assessment parcel fee (.25)
4. Amended tax bill (Correction) fee ($13)
A-C Direct Assessment Fee The system will provide the ability to charge and recover the A-C direct assessment fee as defined in the Direct
DA-10 -~ Assessment Submission Procedure Manual for each parcel successfully applied to the annual tax roll. The A-C Must Have
Billing . . . . )
should get paid on the first secured tax apportionment performed in the fiscal year.
. , Ability to apply direct assessment fee waiver or adjustment for county departments and eligible agencies for
Direct Assessment Processing o . :
DA-11 . . special circumstances when approved by management/County Executive Office (CEQ)/county counsel. Must Have
Fee Waiver / Adjustment . . : :
Waivers and adjustments must be documented by configurable reason key codes stored in the system.
DA-12 Direct Assessment Due Dates Abl-|IT[y fgr A-C staff to input direct assessment due dates, set notification reminder dates and configure Must Have
notification messages.
Ability to distribute countywide or agency specific notifications/messages via the web portal based on the direct
assessment distribution list, including but not limited to the following notifications:
1. When the Direct Assessment Submission Procedures Manual and Forms have been posted and are available
. e for the tax roll year.
DA-13 Direct Assessment Notifications / 2. When the local secured assessment roll is available. Must Have
Messages o ) .
3. Submission Deadline reminders.
4. A-C announcements.
5. Agency assessment correction file confirmations.
6. Exception/error reports that require the agencies review.
DA-14  |Assignments and Deadlines The. system will prowde the ability for management to assign direct assessment corrections to A-C staff and Should Have
designate deadlines.
: The system will provide the ability for taxing agencies to submit a new account request form along with legal
Agency New Direct Assessment . . e L
DA-15 supporting documents via the portal and send workflow notifications to the A-C to establish in the system upon Must Have
Account Request
approval.
Functional Requirements
Direct Assessment
Submissions
The System will provide the capability for authorized users to add direct assessment data by methods including,
DA-16 Direct Assessment Charge File |but not limited to: Must Have
Submissions 1. Uploading an approved direct assessment data file (charge data)
2. Online data entry
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Retrieval of Prior Year Authorized users will have the ability to retrieve and export prior year direct assessment data file to use as a
DA-17 . . : . , Must Have
Submission File basis to prepare the new tax year direct assessment data file.
The system will provide the capability for taxing agency authorized users to log in, upload and submit direct
assessment documentation / information, including, but not limited to:
1. Direct Assessment Data Transmittal form
Direct Assessment 2. Board approved resolution and other applicable supporting documentation (such as ordinance, engineers
DA-18 . Must Have
Documentation report, etc.)
3. Agency Information Sheet
4. Authorization form for consultant acting on behalf of taxing agency
5. Contract / Billing agreement for the applicable roll year
Charge File and Document Ability for taxing agencies to identify/designate the type of document or charge file that is being uploaded via the
DA-19 . . Must Have
|dentification web portal and workflow to the A-C for review and approval.
The system will have the ability to compare the agencies direct assessment file from prior year to the current
. . year file submission and perform a variance analysis to identify differences and flag variances based on
DA-20 |Variance Analysis configurable business rules (i.e. 20% increase/decrease) that will require explanations and certification from the Must Have
levying agency.
Direct Assessment
Submission Validation
The system will provide the ability to validate the data on the submission files and produce error reports for the
following, but not limited to:
1. AIN are located / mapped to the TRAs assigned to the taxing agency on the BOE TRA code chart and
Validate Direct Assessment Data |Assessor records. Discrepancies should be flagged as errors for further review.
DA-21 . . . Must Have
Files 2. Flag duplicate AINs as errors for further review.
3. Identify deactivated parcels due to subdivisions and provide new parcel numbers.
4. Tax exempt parcels.
5. Invalid parcel numbers
DA-22 Vglidation Exceptions / Error The system will reject errors and produce an exception report / data file for taxing agencies to review and Must Have
Files correct.
Auditor-Controller Review
DA-23  |Auditor-Controller Review The system will workflow submissions to the A-C for review and approval. Must Have
DA-24 Rejecting Submission Files System will have the ability to send rejectign .notification with reason codes / explanation to taxing agency so Must Have
corrections can be performed and resubmit files.
DA-25 Ei)l(;ind the Approved Submission Files approved by the A-C shall be batched and uploaded for tax roll extension. Must Have
Direct Assessment Roll
Corrections After Tax Roll
Extension
. : The system will provide the ability for taxing agencies to submit roll correction requests to remove or adjust the
Direct Assessment Correction . : s . . .
DA-26 . direct assessment applied on the annual tax bill via the portal. Agencies shall have the ability to submit the Must Have
Request / Amended Tax Bill . . . h :
corrections by online data entry or by a data file upload in the layout prescribed by the A-C.
The system will provide the ability to charge and recover the A-C direct assessment fee associated with direct
DA-26 Direct Asses.srnent Roll assessment rqll corrections as follows: . . . Must Have
Correction Billing Roll change Direct Assessment total amount = (Total parcels submitted for Direct Assessment roll correction *
Roll Change Processing fee per AlN/parcel)
DA-28  |State Directed Disaster Relief The systgm will prpvide the .abili’.ty to remove or adjust Direct Assessments at an AIN level within the county due Must Have
to state directed disaster relief via an automated batch process.
Unique to Los Angeles
Administration / Calculation of
Voter Approved Direct
Assessments
The system will be able to apply configurable exempt rules for Voter Approved Direct Assessment Agencies
DA-29 ldentify Exempt AINs Measure B, Fire, Compton Creek, and LA West Vector Mosquito that will identify AINs that are exempted from Must Have
Direct Assessment charges.
Direct Assessment Agency Rate |The system will provide the ability to update Direct Assessment Agency Rates for Agency accounts. Agency
DA-30 , . . , X Must Have
File account resolutions will contain rates for each year’s assessment.
Override Direct Assessment The system will provide the ability to allow the Direct Assessment Agency to override the calculated Direct
DA-31 Charges Assessment, and/or calculation component factors based on their individual Direct Assessment override rules. Must Have
The system will allow the Direct Assessment agency to upload the override file via the Self-Service Portal.
Identify Ta.x Rate Area and AlNs The system will provide the ability to associate all AINs and index all Tax Rate Areas to create City Codes for
DA-32  |for each Direct Assessment : : L Must Have
Fire, Mosquito Districts, and Measure B.
Agency
Calculate Direct Assessment The system will provide the ability to calculate the Direct Assessment charge based on, but not limited to: use
DA-33 |Charge for Voter Approved Direct|code, total land acreage, improvement square footage, overrides, and any other miscellaneous factors for Voter Must Have
Assessment Agencies Approved Direct Assessments Agencies
Create and Calculate Public The system will provide the ability to create and calculate Public Utility assessments for Measure B based on,
DA-34 Utility Assessments for Measure |but not limited to: use code, total land acreage, improvement square footage, overrides, and any other Must Have
B miscellaneous factors.
Create Exempt AIN File for The system will have the ability to generate exempt (exempt AINs either had a zero assessment or met an
DA-35 AB2109 State Reporting for exempt use code condition) Must Have
Voter Approved Direct AlINs file for Measure B and Fire Department and generate various reports.
Assessment Agencies
Reporting Requirements
The System will have the ability to generate and store standard County reports, identified by the A-C, that are
DA-36 |County Standard Reports used on a regular basis or critical to the Direct Assessment business process. Reports include, but are not Must Have

limited, to those identified on Exhibit A, Statement of Work, Attachment 9, Reference Library.
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DA-37

County Ad hoc Reports/Data
Analytics

The System will have the ability to query direct assessment data and create ad hoc County reports and provide
data analytics

Must Have
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Regmt |Functional Requirements Requirement Description County Priority
General Requirements
ETR-1 Extending the Tax Roll Charges The system will have the ability to calculate and extend the tax charge for the Secured, Unsecured and Supplemental Must Have
Tax Rolls.
ETR-2 [Suspend Corrections The system will have the ability to suspend corrections during the Tax roll charge extension process. Must Have
ETR-3 |ldentify Tax Roll Type The system will have the ability to identify roll types/roll category types that are included in the roll extension Must Have
ETR-4 |Insufficient Value/Charge Thresholds Thgy system will havg th.e ability for the C?ounty to set insufficient charge thresholds, based on county policy and/or Must Have
legislation, to determine if a charge/bill will extend.
ETR-5  |Validation Rules and Errors The s.ysjtem will have the ability to.conf|gure valldatlon. checks/rules, identify errors arlld provide detailed error Must Have
descriptions during the tax extension process for Auditor-Controller (A-C) staff to review and resolve.
ETR-6 |Roll Extension Approval ;;)tlwoes system will have the ability for the authorized user to approve, reject and reverse the tax roll charge extension Must Have
ETR-7 |Extended Tax Roll Charge Letter The sygtem will have the abllllty to configure and generate the Auditor's tax roll charge extension letter, affidavit and Must Have
supporting tax charge extension reports.
ETR-8 [Archive Tax Extensions The system will have the ability to maintain historical records / log of tax charge extensions by roll type and roll year. Must Have
Functional Requirements
Extend Secured Roll Requirements
ETR-9  |Secured Roll Assessments The system will mcludg locally assessed secured assessments and state assessed secured assessments in the Must Have
secured tax roll extension.
Generate - Extend Secured Tax Roll Charge Requirements
The system will have the ability for user to initiate the tax charge extension only if required conditions are met
including, but not limited to:
. . 1. Local secured roll has been uploaded and approved
ETR-10  Pre-Extension Requirements 2. BOE utility roll has been uploaded and approved Must Have
3. Debt service tax rates have been uploaded and approved
4. Direct assessments have been uploaded and approved
ETR-11 |Validate and Track Secured Assessment The system will provide the abl!lty to yalldate the assessment is taxable prior to tax extension and provide the ability Must Have
to track secured assessments including fully exempt.
. , The system will provide the ability to identify assessments on TRAs where Consulate offices are located. The
Identify Secured Assessments in Consulate Tax Rate Areas : . . . :
ETR-12 (TRA) Assessor assigns special TRAs to consulate offices that are tax exempt however, direct assessments may still be Must Have
applied.
ETR-13  |Mobile Homes - Special Handling The .system will have the ability to identify property types (i.e. mobile homes) ngt subject to water/improvement debt Must Have
service rates pursuant to Water Code 20220 and calculate tax charge accordingly.
The system will provide the ability to calculate (based on configurable formulas) and extend the annual secured tax
roll charge. Calculations include, but are not limited to the following:
1. General Tax Levy = 1% * Net Assessed Value (Net of Exemptions)
2. Debt Service (All Property) = Debt Service Tax Rate%* Net Assessed Value (Net of Exemptions)
3. Debt Service (Land & Improvement) = Debt service tax rate * Land & Improvement Assessed Value
ETR-14 [Extend Secured Tax Roll Charge 4. Debt Service (Land Only) = Debt service tax rate * Land Only Assessed Value Must Have
5. Unitary Debt Service = Unitary debt service tax rate * Net assessed value
6. Secured Total Tax Charge = General Tax Levy + Debt Service + Direct Charges
7. Calculation should be rounded to six decimal places, excess fractions rejected (round down)
The system will extend the tax charge for each parcel using the assessment information from the equalized roll plus
any subsequent roll changes up to the point of roll extension.
The system will have the ability to identify and report the lost mill amounts.
: Note:
ETR-15  |Lost Mill Amounts Revenue & Taxation Code §2152 mandates to reject fractions of a cent. Calculation of taxes resulting in fractions of Must Have
cent is truncated to the nearest cent.
The system will have the ability to calculate the secured tax liability installment amounts.
The system will have the ability to identify if the Total Liens is not divisible by two, add .01 to the 1st Installment Lien.
ETR-16 [Calculate Secured Tax Liability Installment Amount Must Have
Note:
Revenue & Taxation Code §2605 mandates that if the amount is not evenly divisible by two, the odd cent is also due
and payable in the first installment.
The system will have the ability to reconcile the tax charge information to the assessment roll and generate statistical
information/validation/exception reports for the A-C staff to review prior to approval. Information should include, but is
not limited to the following:
1. Display total amount of assessed values (all property, land, improvements), exemptions, direct assessments,
general levy and debt service by roll type, parcel number, parcel book, TRA, taxing jurisdiction/district
Secured Extended Tax Roll - Reconciliation and Variance 2. Display totgl count of.parcels and bl||S'(InC|U.d.Ing number of bills eligible to print and bills insufficient to print) by roll
ETR-17 . category and in comparison to Assessor's certified roll record count Must Have
Analysis :
3. Exempt/Inactive parcels
4. Display detailed list of insufficient to print bills (<$10) including bills where exemption amounts are equal to or
greater than net assessed value
5. Display the tax charge calculation in detail and summary
6. Comparison to prior year average tax rate (i.e. Total Tax Charge/Net Assessed Value) and % change
7. Display tax rates above and below specified thresholds
ETR-18 |Review and Approve the Delivery of Extended Roll Letter I'I(;Tte(;;: system will provide the ability for the A-C to review, approve and edit the secured tax roll charge extension Must Have
ETR-19 |Secured Extended Roll Notification Upon the A-C approval, fthe system will eIec’FronlcaIIy notlfy.the Treasurer & Tax Collector (TTC) that the secured roll Must Have
has been extended and is ready for generation of the tax bill.
ETR-20 [Distribute the Secured Extended Tax Roll for Billing The system must support the distribution of the secured extended tax roll for billing generation purposes. Must Have
Extend Unsecured Roll Requirements
Generate / Extended Unsecured Tax Roll Charge
Requirements
ETR-21 [Validate and Track Unsecured Assessments The system will provide the ability to validate and track the number of unsecured assessments. Must Have




Functional Requirements

ADDENDUM ONE
Attachment VII

ETR-22

Extend Unsecured Tax Roll Charge

The system will provide the ability to calculate (based on configurable formulas) and extend the annual unsecured tax
roll charge utilizing the certified roll received from the Assessor. Calculations include, but are not limited to the
following:

1. General Tax Levy = 1% * Net Assessed Value (Net of Exemptions)

2. Debt Service (Land & Improvement) = Prior year secured debt rate * Land & Improvement Assessed Value
3. Debt Service (Land Only) = Prior year secured debt rate * Land Only Assessed Value

4. Unsecured Total Tax Charge = General Tax Levy + Debt Service

5. Calculation should be rounded to six decimal places, excess fractions rejected (round down)

The system will provide the ability to workflow to A-C staff for review and approval.

Must Have

ETR-23

Unsecured Extended Roll Notification

Upon A-C approval, the system will electronically notify the TTC that the unsecured roll has been extended and is
ready for generation of the current year unsecured tax bill.

Must Have

ETR-24

Distribute the Unsecured Extended Tax Roll for Billing

The system must support the distribution of the unsecured extended tax roll for billing generation purposes.

Must Have

Extend Supplemental Roll Requirements

Generate / Extend Supplemental Tax Roll Charge
Requirements

ETR-25

Supplemental Tax Extension Frequency

The system will have the ability to adjust the frequency of supplemental roll extensions during the fiscal year (i.e.
daily, weekly, monthly, quarterly, etc.)

Must Have

ETR-26

Determine Days Owned

The system will determine days owned between two events within the same tax year.

Must Have

ETR-27

No Proration Due to New Construction

The system will not pro-rate supplemental assessments due to completion of new construction.

Must Have

ETR-28

Count Supplemental Assessments

The system will provide the ability to track the number of supplemental assessments.

Must Have

ETR-29

Supplemental Event Affecting Two Roll Years

If the date of the supplemental event occurred on or after January 1 and on or before May 31, the system will
calculate two supplemental assessments, one for the current year and one for the upcoming year.

Must Have

ETR-30

Determine Fiscal Year Proration Factor

The system will determine the fiscal year factor based on the supplemental presumed date.
Presumed date for supplemental assessment is based on the first day of the month following the actual date of event
through the end of the fiscal year.

Current Fiscal Year Factor | Upcoming Fiscal Year
Factor

August 1 0.92 N/A
September 1 0.83 NIA
October 1 0.75 N/A
November 1 067 N/A
December 1 0.58 N/A
January 1 0.50 N/A
January 1 - 31 February 1 0.42 1
February 1-29 March 1 0.33 1
March 1-31 April 1 0.25 1
April 1-30 May 1 0.17 1
May 1 - 31 June 1 0.08 1
June 1-30 July 1 0 1

Date of Supplemental Event | Presumed Date

July 1-31
August 1-31
September 1-30
October 1 - 31
November 1 - 30

December 1 - 31

Must Have

ETR-31

Configurable Factors for Tax Charge Calculation

Ability for the system/user to configure factors affecting the tax charge calculation. Factors include, but are not limited
to:

Date of supplemental event(s)

Owner associated to supplemental event(s)

Number of supplement events within the period

Number of tax years affected by supplemental event(s)
Proration factors

Change in assessment value

Property not subject to reassessment

Paid status of prior bill(s)

9. Unbilled tax charges

10. Type of tax bill to be extended (i.e. Secured/Unsecured)
11. Applicable tax rate(s)

12. Number of installments

NN =

Must Have

ETR-32

Extend Supplemental Tax Roll Charge

Ability for the system to calculate and extend the supplemental ta